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NORWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
1n Summit Street, Norwood, NJ 07648 

Sacha Pouliot 
School Business Administrator 

Mr. Michael Sprague, President 
Members of the Board of Education 
Norwood School District 
Norwood, New Jersey 07648 

Dear Board Members: 

PH: 201·788-6363 
FX: 201·788-2047 

October 1, 2019 

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Norwood Board of Education for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019, Is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of my 
knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report Is accurate In all material respect and Is reported In a manner 
designed to present fairly the linanclal position and resutts of operation of the various funds and account groups of the 
District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have 
been Included. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires that management provide a narrative Introduction, 
overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is deSigned to complement the MD&A and should be read In conjunction with it. 
Norwood's MD&A can be found immediately following the ·Independent Auditors" Report". 

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in five sections: (1) the Introductory section Includes this 
transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart and a list of prinCipal officials. (2) The financial section Includes the 
general-purpose financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report. (3) The supplementary schedules 
provide Insight into the public school fiscal year. (4) The statistical section Includes selected financial and demographic 
Information, generally presented on a multiyear basis. (5) The single audit section of this report Includes conformity with 
the provisions of the Single Audit Act of Amendments 1996 and the TItle 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, ·Uniform Administrative ReqUirements, Cost PrinCiples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards" and State of 
New Jersey OMB 15.0B, ·Slngle Audit Policy for ReCipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid". The single 
audit section of this report Includes the auditors' reports on the Internal controls structure, compliance with applicable 
laws, regulations, findings and recommendations. 

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: 

Norwood School District Is an Independent reporting entJty within the criteria adopted by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14. All funds of the District are 
included In this report. The Norwood Board of Education and its school constitute the District's reporting 
entity. 

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through B. These 
Include regular as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The District completed the 
201 B-2019 fiscal year with an enrollment of 591 which Is a decrease of 8 students from the previous 
year's enrollment or a change of 1.34%. The following details the changes In the student enrollment of 
the District over the last ten years. 
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Aacal 
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2007-2008 
2008-2009 
2009-2010 
2010.2011 
2011-2012 
2012-2013 
2013-2014 
2015-2016 
2016-2017 
2017-2018 
2018-2019 

2. OUR COMMUNITY: 

Enrollment IncreeaelDecr"S! 

Student 
Enrollment 

634 
635 
625 
625 
607 
580 
585 
594 
624 
599 
591 

Percent 
Change 

(1.42)% 
0.2% 

(1.02)% 
0.0% 

(2.88)% 
(4.4%) 
0.8% 
1.5% 
5.05% 
(4.01%) 
(1.34)% 

Norwood's richest resource Is its citizens who are primarily employed In business, finance, engineering, 
professional occupations and skilled labor. 

The Borough of Norwood Is located in the extreme northeast sector of Bergen County known as the 
Northern Valley and occupies an area of 2.9 square miles with a population of over 6000. 

The Mayor and Council sponsor a town recreation program for all age groups thoughout the year. 
Norwood has a very active Parent-Teacher Association, three church groups, scout programs and youth 
sport programs. Adult Interests are church related or service groups such as Norwood Library 
Association, The American Legion, Ambulance Corps, Volunteer Fire Department and Women's' ClUb. 

3. OUR SCHOOL; 

The Norwood School District operates under a unit control system, comprised of one elementary school 
(K-S) and a seven member elected Board of Education. We, along, with six other Northem Valley towns, 
send our students to the Northern Valley Regional High School whose programs and activities are 
coordinated by a central curriculum office. 

NorwOOd'S students are alert and academically motivated. Their families have high aspirations and our 
challenge is to keep up with the times. We believe that our broad curriculum, stress on basics, state-of­
the-art computer rooms, rich cultural arts and gifted programs, services for speCial needs and curricular 
actlvnles do provide an excellent education. The District offers a variety of guidance opportunities as well 
as staff in-service training. 

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal controt structure 
designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure 
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements In 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is 
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept 
of reasonable assurance recognized that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefit likely to 
be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgements by 
management. 
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As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an 
adequate Intemal control structure Is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations 
related to those programs. This Internal control structure Is also subject to periodic evaluation by the 
district management. 

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the 
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, 
as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations. 

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: 

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of 
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual 
appropriated budget approved by the voters of Norwood. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for 
the general fund, the special revenue fund and the debt service fund. A project·length budget Is 
approved for the capital improvements accounted for In the capital projects fund. The final budget 
amount as amended for the 2017·2018 fiscal year Is reflected In the financial section. 

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item 
basiS. Open encumbrances at year·end are either canceled or are Included as reappropriation of fund 
balance in the subsequent year. 

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: 

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting prinCiples, as promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District of Norwood is 
organized on the basiS of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained In 
"Notes to the Financial Statements'. 

7. PEBTADMfNISIRATION 

On November 30, 1994 the voters approved a referendum for $2,850,000 for the construction of an 
addition to the Norwood PubliC SChool Including the acquisition and installation of equipment and 
furnishings. On September, 8 1994, the district funded the referendum with a $2,850,000 bond sale. The 
District has $185,000 In serial bonds as of June 30, 2014. 

On November 30, 2006, the voters approved a referendum for $4,747,000 to be used to construct 
additions, alterations and renovations of Norwood Elementary School, including the acquisition and 
Installation of fumlshlngs and equipment and site work. The total cost of the project was $5,813,427 and 
the Board received a grant from the State of New Jersey In the amount of $1,065,BB6. The local share 
was funded through the Issuance of Bonds and the remaining $541 was available through other funds of 
the Board. On March 22, 2006, the district funded the referendum with $4,747,000 bond sale. The 
District refinanced the 2006 Bonds on March 18, 2015. No bonds from this Issue remain outstanding as 
of June 30, 2019. 

On March 18, 2015, the District Issued $3,510,000 Refunding School Bonds to refinance the callable 
maturities of the $4,747,000 bonds described above, maturing in the years 2017 through 2026. The 
District realized total debt service savings of $235,n2 through fiscal year ending June 30, 2026. As of 
June 30, 2019, the District has $2,465,000 serial bonds outstanding. 

8. CASH MANAGEMENT: 
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The Investment policy of the District is guided In large part by state statue as detalied In "Notes to the 
Financial Statements', Note 2. The Distrlct has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to 
deposit public funds In public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental 
Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPAj. GUDPA was enacted In 1970 to protect Governmental Units from 
a loss of funds on deposit with a falied banking Institution In New Jersey. The law requires governmental 
units to deposit public funds only In public depositories located In New Jersey, where the funds are 
secured In accordance with the Act. 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Board Is a member of NESBIG (Northeast School Boards Insurance Group). The Group Is a risk 
sharing public entity pool, established for the purpose of Insuring this Board and several other districts 
against workers compensation claims. The Board carries various forms of Insurance, Including but not 
limited to general liability, automobile liablilty and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on 
property and contents and fidelity bonds. 

10. IN DE PEN PENT AUPIT: 

State statutes require an annual audit by Independent certified public accountants or registered municipal 
accountants. The accounting firm of T.M. Vrabel & Associates, LLC was appointed by the Norwood Board 
of Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth In state statues, the audit also was 
designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the related Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Pert 200, 'Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards' and State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB. The auditor's report on 
the general-purpose financial statements and combining and Individual fund statements and schedules Is 
Included In the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit 
are Included In the single audit section of this report. 

We would like to express appreCiation to the members of the Norwood Board of Education for their commitment to 
provide fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and for their support of our finanCial 
operation. I would also like to express appreciation to the staff for their dedicated service. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lisa Gross 
Superintendent 

Sacha Pouliot 
School Business Administrator/Board Secretary 
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"l. !M. rVrabe{ ~.hsociates, ££C 
Accountants ana Auditors 

IJimot&y 9rt. 'JIm6e( ~ QI~ 
emu c. !Hwang, cYP.A. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

11,e Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Borough of Norwood School District 
County of Bergen, New Jersey 

Report on the Finnneini Statements 

. We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Borough of Norwood School 
District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements which 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

MII/wgemelll's Respom;bilily fo, I", Fillll/,c;1l1 Slalemellls 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
linancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

AI/II/lo,'s Respollslbilily 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audils contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Educalion, Slate of New Jersey. 1110se standards require thai we plan and perform Ihe audit to 
oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether Ihe basic financial statements are free of material misslalement. 

An audil involves performing procedures 10 obtain audit evidence abollt the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial stalements. The procedures selected depend on Ihe auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
risks of material misslatement of the financial stalements, whelher due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the audilor considers internal control relevant 10 Ihe enlity's preparation and fair presenlation of 
the financial statements in order 10 design audil procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
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Ihe purpose of expressing an opinion on Ihe effecliveness of Ihe emily's inlernal conlrol. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audil also includes evalualing Ihe approprialeness of accouming policies used and 
Ihe reasonableness of significant accounling eSlimates made by management, as well as evaluating Ihe overall 
presenlation of the financial slatements. 

We believe thaI the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opilliolls 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
Iinaneial position of the governmental activities, Ihe business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information the Borough of Norwood School Districl as of June 30, 2019, and the respective 
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, Ihereof for the year then ended in conformity 
with accouming principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

O,lte, Mailers 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis on Page 14 through 20 and budgetary comparison information of schedules C-I and C-
2 be presemed to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial slalements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic finaneial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or hislorical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statemems, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express nn opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with suflicient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Borough of Norwood School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying 
introductory section, and other supplementary information such as the combining and individual fund financial 
slalements, long-term debt schedules, statistical tables and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and State Financial Assistance as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (eFR) Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards: and New 
Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Fede,"1 Grants. State Grants and State Aid 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statemenlS. 
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The combining and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the Schedules of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
tinancial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in audit of the 
basic tinancial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and 
individual fund tinancial statements, long-term debt schedules and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards and State Financial Assistance is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures and applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Governmellt AI/ditillg Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 25,2019 
on our consideration of the Borough of Norwood School District'S internal control over financial reporting and 
on out tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control 
over tinancial reporting or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Borough of Norwood School District's internal control over 
tinancial reporting and compliance . 

Montville, New Jersey 
September 25, 2019 

. ~-~ 
;;:~t1~" Vrabel 
Public School Accountant 
License No. CS000698 

Chris C. W. Hwang 
Certified Public Accountant 
License No. CC033704 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
PART I 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of the Borough of Norwood School District financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 
Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page I and the District's financial statements, which begin on page 23. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The District's net position increased $394,000 as a result of this year's operations. Net position of our business-type activities 
decreasedlby $4,000 or 67 percent, and net position of our governmental activities increased by $398,000 or 11.0 percent. 

• Total cost of all ofth. District's programs was $14.125 million in 2018-2019 compared to $14.128 million in 2017-2018. 
• During the year, the District had expenses for governmental activities that were $325,000 more than the $13 .110 million 

generated in tax and other program revenues. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists ofa series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (on pages 
23 and 24) provide information about the activities of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view on the District's finances. 
Fund financial statements start on page 27. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the 
short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the District's operation in more detail 
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the District's most financially significant funds 

Reporting the District as a Whole 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

Our analysis of the District as a whole begins on page 16. One of the most important questions asked about the District's finances is 
"/s the District as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Activities report information about the District as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These 
statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most 
private-sector companies. Accrual of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. 

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in them. You can think of the District's net position, the difference 
between assets and liabilities, as one way to measure the District's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the District's net position are one indicator whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to 
consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the District's property tax base, and the condition of the District's 
capital as~ets to assess the overall health of the District. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the District into two kinds of activities: 

• Governmental activities: most of the District's basic services are reported here, including general administration. Local taxes, 
tuition and state and federal aid finance most of these activities. 

• Business-type-activities: the District has one proprietary fund for a milk program. This is shown on pages 3 1,32 and 33. 
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Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

Our analysis of the District's major funds begins on page 18. The fund financial statements begin on page 27 and provide detailed 
information about the most significant funds-not the District as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law. The 
District's two kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting approaches. 

Governmentalfonds: most of the District's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into 
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting 
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. 
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's general government operations and the basic 
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps one determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can 
be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliation on page 
29. 

Proprietary fonds: when the District charges customers for the full cost of the services it provides, these services are reported in 
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities. In fact, the District's enterprise funds (a component of business type funds) are the same as the business­
type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, 
for proprietary funds. 

The District as Trustee 

Reporting the District's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Unemployment Compensation Trust, Scholarship Funds and Agency Funds. All of the 
District's fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on 
pages 35 and 36. We exclude these activities from the District's other fmancial statements because the District cannot use these assets 
to finance its operations. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these'funds are used for their intended 
purposes. 
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THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

The District's combined net position changed from a year ago, increasing from $3.626 million to $4.020 million. Looking at the net 
position and net expenses of governmental and business-type activities separately, different stories emerge. Our analysis below 
focuses on the net position (Table I) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the District's governmental and business-type activities 
as of June 30. 

Table 1 
Net Position (in Thousands) 

Governmental 
Activitjes 

w.2 2018 

Current and other assets 3,116 3,440 
Long tenn receivables 99 99 
Capital assets 6,192 5,848 

Total assets 9,407 9,387 

Deferred outDows ofresourees 594 842 

Long-tenn debt outstanding 2,619 2,954 
Aggregate net pension liability 2,181 2,674 
Other liabilities 241 240 

Total liabilities 5,041 5,868 

Deferred inflows ofresourees 942 740 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 3,727 3,038 
Restricted 2,654 3,033 
Unrestricted (deficit) 12,363) 12,451) 

Total net position 4,018 3,620 

Business-type 
Activites 

w.2 2018 

3 7 

_~3 7 

_~2 6 

_....;;2 6 

Total 

~I!!!!!X Qlv~!!l!mnl 
w.2 WI 

3,l!9 3,447 
99 99 

6,192 5,848 

9,410 9,394 

594 842 

2,619 2,954 
2,181 2,674 

242 241 
~ 5,042 ~ 5,869 

942 740 

3,727 3,038 
2,654 3,033 

12,361) (2,445) 

4,020 3,626 

Net position of the District's governmental activities increased by 11.0 percent. Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that 
can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal 
requirements increased by $88,000. Restricted net position, those restricted mainly for capital projects decreased by $379,000. Both 
net asset categories benefited from increased economic activity, which resulted in actual revenues exceeding bUdgeted revenues. The 
investment in capital assets, net of debt category increased by $689,000. 
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Table 2 
Changes In Net Position (in thousands) 

GlVernmental Bus iness-type Total 
Activities Activites Priman: {bvernment 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for Services 79 86 9 10 88 96 
Operating Gants and Contributions 3,712 3,932 3,712 3,932 

General revenues: 
Property Taxes 10,150 9,910 10,150 9,910 
Tuition !!2 21 112 21 
Federal and State Aid 41 30 41 30 
Interest and Investment Earnings 36 38 36 38 
(nherGeneralRevenues 375 377 3 2 378 379 

Total Revenues: 14,505 14,394 12 12 14,517 14,406 

Progmrn e!!l!enses including indirect e!!l!enses 

Instruction: 
Regular 5,378 5,624 5,378 5,624 
Special 1,726 1,641 1,726 1,641 
(nher instruction 364 429 364 429 

Support services: 
Tuition 1,776 1,437 1,776 1,437 
Student and instruction related services 2,073 2,093 2,073 2,093 
School administrative services 430 432 430 432 
General and business administrative services 937 1,035 937 1,035 
Plant operations and maintenance 1,177 1,196 1,177 1,196 
Pupil transportation 160 137 160 137 

SOA Debt Service Assessment 9 9 9 9 
Interest on long-term debt 79 86 79 86 
Bus iness-type activities: 

Milk Program 16 9 16 9 

Total &penses 14,109 14,119 16 9 14,125 14,128 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 396 275 (4) 3 392 278 
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THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 
Governmental Activities 
Table3 
Information below compares revenues and expenditures for all governmental fund types for 2018-2019 and 2017-2018. 

($000 omitted) 
Revenues by Source: 2018-2019 2017-2018 % Change 

Local Tax Levy 10,229 9,995 2.34% 
Tuition Charges 112 21 433.33% 
Interest Earned to Investments 36 38 -5.26% 
Miscellaneous 378 379 -0.26% 

Total - Local Sources 10,755 10,433 3.09"10 
State Sources 2,156 2,128 1.32% 
Federal Sources 199 222 -10.36% 

Total Revenues 13.110 12,783 2.56% 

($000 omitted) 
~~!!diIl!re~ by EU!l~tion: 201 §-20j 9 2017-2018 % !:hange 
Current: 

Regular Instruction 3,033 3,045 -0.39% 
Special education 1,014 951 6.62% 
Other instruction 205 237 -13.50% 

Support Services and undistributed costs: 
Tuition 1,776 1,437 23.59% 
Student and instruction related services 1,245 1,246 -0.08% 
School administrative services 241 234 2.99% 
General and Business administrative services 564 602 -6.31% 
Plant operations and maintenance 827 800 3.38% 
Pupil transportation 160 137 16.79% 
Employee Benefits 3,223 3,310 -2.63% 

Capital Outlay 721 861 -16.26% 
Debt Service: 

Principal 345 340 1.47% 
Interest on long-term debt 81 88 -7.95% 

Total &penditures 13,435 13,288 1.11% 
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Business-type Activities 

District's major Enterprise Fund consists of the Milk Program. The basic financial statements for the major funds are included in this 
report. Because the focus on business-type funds is a cost of service measurement or capital maintenance, we have included these 
funds in Table 4, which demonstrates return on ending assets and return on ending net position. 

Table 4 

($000 omitted) 

Total Assets 
Net Position 
Change in Net Position 

Return on Ending Total Assets 

Return on Ending Net Position 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 
Table 5 

Capital Assets at Year-end 
(Net of Depreciation, In thousands) 

lAnd 
lAnd lJT4lrovements 
Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Construction in Progress 

Subtotal 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Totals 

Governmental 
Activities 

M2 ~ 

68 68 

12,047 11,335 
500 500 

12,615 11,903 
(6,424) (6,055) 

6,191 5,848 

Milk 
Program 

3 
2 

(4) 

-133.33% 

-200.00"10 

Business-type 
Activites 

M2 2018 

1 1 
(1) (1) 

• 

Totals 
2019 2018 

68 68 

12,047 11,335 
501 501 

12,616 • 11,904 
(6,425) (6,056) 

6,191 5,848 

The District's 2019-2020 capital budget anticipates a spending level of$990,663 for capital projects. More detailed information about 
the District capital assets is presented in Note IIl:C. to the basic financial statements 
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DEBT 
At year - end the District had total debt of$ 2.465 million versus $2.810 million last year - a decrease of 12.3 percent - as shown in 
Table 6. 

Outstanding Debt, at year ....,nd (in thousands) 
Table 6 

Serial Bonds 
Loans 
Lease Purchase Agreement 
Temporary Notes 
Authori2cd but not Issued 

Governmental 
Activities 

M2 WJ! 

2,465 2,810 

2,465 2,810 

An analysis of District Debt is presented in Note IV:B. to the basic financial statements. 

BUDGETS 

The variances between the originally adopted budget for the 2018-2019 year, and the final budget were caused by the treatment of 
encumbrances that are added to the original budget and the appropriation of additional fund balance. In addition, the State pension 
payments which are paid by the State on behalf of employees are not budgeted; however they are counted as an expense in the audit. 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general overview of 
the District's fmances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. !fyou have questions about this report or 
need additional financial information, contact the School Business Administrator, Norwood School District, 177 Summit Street, 
Norwood, New Jersey. 
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Exhibit A-I 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH DF NORWOOD 
Statement of Net PoelUon 

Jun. 30. 201. 

Govlrnmental Busln ••• ·type 
Acllvlliu a!Cl1vlllgl I2!!l 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents S 657.901 .89 S 2.731.42 $ 680.633.11 
Recelvab1es. net 430.341 .77 430.341 .77 
Interlund receivables 50.000.00 50,000.00 
Restricted 8asets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 114,106.79 114,108.79 
Capital reserve account· cash 1,962.806.76 1,962,606.76 

Capltal .... I •• nel (Nol. IItC.): 6,191,794.92 6,191,794.92 
Total Assets 9,408,755.93 2,731 .42 9.409,467.35 

DEFERRED OUTFLDWS OF RESOURCES 
Defem!d outflows related 10 pension. 594,361 .00 594,361 .00 

Total Def.rTed Outflows of Resources 594,361 .00 594,361 .00 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payabfe 1,000.00 1 ,000.00 
Bond Inlere.t payable 21,566.75 21.566.75 
Inlem.nd payable 500.76 500.76 
Payable to federal government 538.63 538.63 
Unearned revenue 4.205.25 4.205.25 
Olher 215,057.00 215,057.00 
Long-Ierm IIablilUes other Ihan penslons(Nole IV:B.): 

Due within one year 352.700.00 352.700.00 
Due beyond one year 2,265.878.88 2.265,878.86 

Aggregate nel pension liability 2.160,662.00 2,160,662.00 
Tolaillabillti.s 5,041,10929 1,000.00 5,042,109.29 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred "'"ows related to pensions 942,553.00 942,553.00 
Total Deferred Innows of Resources 942,553.00 942,553.00 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment In capital assets 3.726,794.92 3,726,794.92 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 2,257,636.30 2.257.638.30 
Doblservlce (14,685.20) (14.665.20) 
Other purposes 411,144.68 411.144.66 

Unreslricted (2,363,436.06) 1,731.42 (2,381 .704.94) 

Total Nel Position $ 4.017,454.64 $ 1.731 .42 S 4,019,166.06 

The accompanying Not •• to Financial Statements are an Integral part of thl. statemenL 
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ExhlbitA·2 
BOARO OF EDUCAnON 

BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30,2019 
N.t (Expense) Revenue and 

Program Revenua. Changes In Net Posftlon 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 
FuncUonsiPrograms Expenses ~ Contributions Contributions ActlvlUes AcUvlt!es !l1Ii1 

Govemmental activities: 
InsIruClion: 

Regular $ 5,378,150.43 $ • $ 1,309,863.63 $ $ (4,068,286.80) $ $ (4,068,286.80) 
Special educalion 1,725,748.79 703,962.15 (1,021,786.64) (1 ,021,786.64) 
Other instruction 364,333.97 98,865.80 (265,468.17) (265,468.17) 

Suppoft services: 
Tuition l,n5,755.21 486,662.75 (1 ,289,092.46) (1,289,092.46) 
Student and instruction related services 2,072,661.55 521,155.68 (1,551,505.87) (1,551,505.87) 
Schoot administrative services 430,364.01 113,798.94 (316,565.07) (316,565.07) 
General and business administrative services 937,255.68 216,642.59 (720,613.09) (720,613.09) 
Plant operations and maintenance 1,ln,338.57 208,301.n (969,036.80) (969,036.80) 
Pupil lranspo<1ation 159,957.23 52,841 .51 (107,115.72) (107,115.72) 

SOA Debt Service Assessment 8,576.00 (8,576.00) (8,576.00) 
Interest on JoniHerm debt 78,837.50 78,837.50 

Tolal govemmental activities 14.108.978.94 78.837.50 3,712,094.82 (10,318,046.62) (10,318,046.62) 

N Business-type activities: 
~ Milk Fund 15,581.28 8,703.02 16,878.26) (6,878.26) 

Total business·type activities 15,581 .28 8,703.02 16,878.26) 16,878.26) 
Total primary government $ 14,124,560.22 $ 87,~0.5~ $_3,7~2,OlM.8~ $ - $ (10.318,046.62) $ (6.878.26) $ (10,324,924.88) 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes $ 9,803,530.00 $ S 9,803,530.00 
Property taxes, levied for debt service principal 346,787.50 346,787.50 

Fedefal and State aid oot restricted 41,375.69 41 ,375.69 
Tuition (other than special schools) 111,923.74 111,923.74 
Investment Earnings 35,979.97 35,979.97 
Miscellaneous Income 378,112.81 378,112.81 
Transfers 12,782.50) 2,782.50 

Total general revenues, special items, extraordinary items and ttan.sJers 10,714,927.21 2,782.50 10,717,709.71 
Change In Nel Position 396,880.59 (4,095.76) 392,784.83 
Net Assets-beginning, as restated 3.620,57405 5.827.18 3.626.401 .23 

Net Asset.s-ending S 4.017.454.64 $ 1,731.42 $ 4,019,186.06 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement. 



Section B 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

25 



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

26 



Exhibit B.1 
BOARD DF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF NORWOOO 
BalancI Sheet 

Governmental Fundi 
June 30, 2011 

Spec'aI Cepltal Debl Total 
Gene ... 1 Revenue ProJecli SeMee Govwftmtntll 

fIlM fIlM fIlM f!IIIlI fwI!Il 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 498,906.19 $ (52,249.47) S 114,108.79 S 213,244.97 S n2,010.48 
Intttfundl recehtable 50,000,00 00,213.02 8,495.58 148,708.60 
Receivables from other governments 272,849.11 58,991 .35 99,401.31 429,341.77 
Other recehtables 1,000,00 1,000.00 
Rutrtded cult and Chh equioIaWints 1.962,808.78 t002.60870 

TotllADlis S 2?831484,OO S 41741.68 S 3031723.12 S 221
1
740.55 S 3.3131869,01 

L1A8IUneS AND FUND BAlANCES _: 
Interfund. pay80le S 90,71380 S S 8.495.58 S $ 89,209.38 

Ps.,.,. to federllgovenwntnl. 538.03 153e.o3 
Dettmld "",enul 4,205.25 4.205.~ 

0tI10t (T"" L"'Y 0ve!paId) 215.057.00 2151°57.00 

TOIal UablllUes 901713.80 4.741 .86 8,4a5,58 215.051.00 319.DOe.28 

Fund Balances: 
Resbtcted tor: 

Reserved Exc:eu Swplus - DesIgnatId b' 
Subsequent Vlar'S Expendllures 40,000,00 40,000.00 

CapItal Res«w Accaunl 1,962,&08.18 1,002,608.78 

Capital ProJld.I 295,22754 295,227.54 -- 6,883.55 8,883.55 

Assigned 10: 

Other PutpoJl. 371,144,68 371,14.4,68 

Unaulgn.d 318.998.82 318.996.82 

TOIal Fund Balances 2.6921750.28 295.227.54 6.683.55 2,994,661 ,3!Ii 

Tolal Liabilities and Fund Balance. S 2.7831484.06 S 41741 .88 $ 303.723.12 $ 2211740.55 

AmounIs tepOI1ed for gowmmetIW adMlfes k\ the statement of 

nel position (A-1) Itt dlrrerent because: 

AdJuSlmanlto Oebt Service Fund nIl position for the 
acaual of )nIerell expance. (21,'".,7') 

Capital asset. used In governmental actMUes a~ not nnanda! 
r8101.1'C8' and therefore are not reported In the flRfs . The COlt 
of Ih. a.l8l. Is $12,815,938,98 and the accumulated depreciation 
1158.424,144.04 6,191,704,92 

Pemion IBbItIes net of defemd outftowI and JnfIowa or resourcel (2,52. 854 00) 

long-leon JabIJIlM,IndudIng bonds payable, are not due and 
payable In the curTenl period and therefOAl are not reported al 
HabDllJe. In tha funds (pe Noll IV:9.) (2.618.578.88) 

N.t pOIWon of governmental adlvWes $ 41°171454.84 

Tha accompanying Notea to Financial Stat.menll a,. an Integ,.., part of thl •• tatlmanL 
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Exhibit B·2 
BOARD OF EOUCAOON 

BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Stltament of Revenues, ExpendtturM, And CMngd In Fund Belane" 
Governmental Funde 

For the V,.r Endtd June 30, 2019 

Special Capital Dotrt Totol 
Ganeral Revenue Projects Servlc. Govlrnmentll 

ElID!I fI!D!I ElID!I EIIIllI fItIIlII 

REVfNUES 
LocallOUl'teS: 

Local tax levy S 9,803,530.00 S S S 425,625.00 S 10,229,15500 
Tuilion charges 111 ,923.74 111,923.74 
Interest earned on Investments 9,64921 4,507.60 14,358.81 
Interest eamed on Capital Reserve Funds 21,623.16 21,623.18 
Mlscelaneous 378.' 12.81 378.112.81 

Tol8I· Local Sources 10,325,038.92 4,507.60 425,825.00 10,755,171 .52 

State sources 2,155,944.10 2,155,944.10 
federal sources 198,717.41 198,717.41 

Total Revenues 12,480.983.02 198.717.41 4,507.60 425,825.00 13,109.833.03 

EXPENDITURES 
CunenI: 

Regular instruction 2.996,892.24 38,156 41 3,033,048 85 

SpedaleducationlnstruCUon 883.198.35 150,506.00 1,013,704.35 

Olhe< InstNcllon 205,59123 205,591.23 

Support services and undistributed costs: 
Tuition 1,775,755.21 1.775,755.21 
Student ancIlnslJUdlon relaled _ 1.232.67141 12,055.00 1,244,728.41 

School administrative services 240,784.88 240,784.88 

General and buslnes. administrative services 583,872.97 583,872.97 
Plant operalkm and maintenance 828,741 .78 828.741.76 

Pupil tranlportatfon 159,957.23 159,957.23 

Unanocated benefits 3,223,570.79 3.223.570.79 

Capilli oullay 720,845.43 720.845.43 

Debt service: 
Principal 345,000.00 345,000.00 
lnterest and other charges 801850.00 8018S0.00 

Total expenditures 12,809.681.50 198.717.41 4251850.00 13.434.248.91 

Extess (Oefidency) of revenues 
over expenditures 1328.898.48) 4,507.80 1225.00) (324.415.88) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES) 

Tl1I.nsfers In 4,507.60 4.507.60 
Transfers (out) (2,782.50) (4,507.60) (Z,290.10) 

Total Other Financlng Sources and (Uses) (2,782.50) (4,507.80) 4,507.60 (2,782.50) 

Net change In fund balances (331,460.96) 4.282.80 (327,198.36) 
Fund Balance-Juty 1 3,024,231 .24 295,227.54 2,400.95 3,321,859.73 

Fund Satance-June 30 $ 2,692,750.28 S S 295,227.54 S 6,663.55 S 2,994.881.35 

The Iccompanylng Note. to Financial Statements aR an Integral part of thl' statement. 
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BOARD OF EDUCAnON 
BOROUGH O~ NORWOOD 

Racon.;III.don of ttla St.ltement of Revenue., Exp.ndlturw., 
.nd Change. In FUnd B.Ilanea. of Govammencal Fund. 

10 the St.ltemml of AeUvltf •• 
For the Ve.r Ended Jun, 30, 2019 

Total net ch.ngeln fund balance. - govamment.ll fund. (from B.2, 

Amooots reported I« governmental actlvltl." In the Iialement 
at actlvilies (A-2) are dltrerent bac:euse: 

In the .tatemant of activities, Inte,.,t on long-tarm debt In the stltement of aclJvltles Is acaued, 
regardl .. s of wMn doe. In the govenvnental funds, !RIAIst II repofted wt1en due. The dlft'eten1:8 
In accrued Inleresll. an addlilon In the reconciliation. (+) 

Interesc paid 
Inlerelt accrued 

Capital outlays are ,..poned In govemmental fundi a. expenditures. However. In the .tatement or 
actIvtUes, ChI cost of thole usets II allocated over their estimated useful nv .. as dapredaUon expense. 
This I. the amount by which apllal outlay. exceeded depreciation In the period. 00precIatl0n _ .. 

C.pllal outlaYI (ex.;luslve of caplt.l 
..... pdndpolpeymt<U and 

SOA Cebt Servia A"esament) 

Adjustment 10 Capital Asltl.ln ac:eordanee with physicalappral.al and dispositions 

In the .tatement of actlvldes, only the gain on the dIsposal of capll.' asaelJ Is reponed. whereu 
In the governmeraf biela, the proceed. from II u&e Incn ... ~ resources. Thu', 1M change In 
net a ... 11 will differ from tha change In fund balance by the co.1 of the auel removed. (.) 

In the .ta18mtl'll of actlvH"I, c:art.lln operaUng expenll', e.g, compan.ated absencel (vacallons and 
unused .'d!; pey) are measured by the .ImOUttts earned duttng the year. In the govemment* funds, 
however, expendlhnt for IhtH Items .. reported In the amount Of ftnandal resoul't\8. ultd (paid). 
When the eamed amount exc:eed. the paid amount, tha dlfferenee Is ntdUdion In the reconciliation (-); 
when the paid amotn exeeeds the earned amourw 1M dtIIlf8I"ICe II an addition kl 1M raconcI1atton (+). 

Oo\'CJ'Mlef\tal rundt ~ district pnuicm contribuuon. at expcrIditwa. III the IU.Imlcnt of activilcs, 
however, the cosl ofpc:nsion bCllefib earned ncl or employee contributions i. reponed at pension upensc. 

Oblrlctpenslon_·PERS 
COlt of beneflll earnad net of 

employee1 contJ1bU1:lons 

Payment of long-term lIabUIty principal II an expenditure In the governmental flJrlds, but the repayment I'8CIueeI 
k)ng-tann nablVUe, '" the "atement of net aisellllf\d I. not reported In the statement of adMit ... 

Cebt principal 
Capital Ie ... P/1nc1po1 

Proceeds from debtlSiuts are a flnancIng source In tile governmental funds. They In not raveooe In 
the sillament of actlvlti .. ; IlIu:ng debt Incttase.long·tarm liabi,ltles In the statem.nt of nat assets. 

Proceeds of long-term debt 
Capllallaa" proceedl 

Revenues In 1'18 5talement of actN"les Which do not provtde current financial resources are not 
reported as revenues In tha fundi. (+) 

Change In net position of govemment.lla.;tMU" 

Th. a.;companylng Notas to Fln.nelal Stal.menta .Ire .In Integral part of thl'stat.menL 
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&0,850.00 
(78,837.SO) 

(3eII,nO.7.) 

712,26SU3 

110,342.00 

(68.859.64) 

Ext\lbltB-3 

(327,198.38) 

2,012.50 

343,498.88 

(9,914.57) 

43,48236 

345,000.00 

396,880.59 
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ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent assets: 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2019 

Furniture, machinery and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Assets 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

NET POSITION 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Position 

$ 

EKhlblt B-4 

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds 

Milk Fund 

2,731.42 
2,731 .42 

846.00 
(846.00) 

2,731.42 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 

1,731.42 

$ 2,731.42 

2,731.42 

846.00 
(846.00) 

2,731.42 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 

1,731.42 
$ 1,731.42 $ 1,731.42 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Exhibit B-5 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes In Fund Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for services: 

Dally sales - non-reimbursable programs 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Cost of sales - non-relmbursable programs 

Tolal Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Transfers In (out) 

Change In net position 
Total Net PosHlon-8eglnnlng 

Tolal Net Position-Ending 

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds 

Milk Fund 

$ 8,703.02 $ 8,703.02 
8,703.02 8,703.02 

15,581.28 15,581.28 

15,581.28 15,581.28 

(6,878.26) (6,878.26) 

2,782.50 2,782.50 
(4,095.76) (4,095.76) 
5,827.18 5,827.18 

$ 1,731.42 S 1,731.42 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary FundI 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FtNANCING ACTIVITIES 

Op.ratlng subsidies and transf.rs to other fund. 

N.t cash provided by (used for) non-c.pit.1 financing .ctivities 

N.t incr •••• (decre.s.) in cash .nd cash equiv.lents 

B.I.nces-beginnlng of y.ar 

B.I.nc.s-end of y •• r 

(used for) operating actlvltlel: 

Operating income (loss) 

Adjustm.nts to reconcile oper.ting income (loss) to n.t cash 

provided by (used for) oper.ting .ctlvities: 

Incre.se (decrease) In accounts p.y.ble 

Tot.1 adjustm.nts 

Net cash provided by (us.d for) operating .ctivities 

$ 

S 

S 

S 

The accompanying Notel to Financial Statements are an Integral part of thl. statemenL 
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Exhibit B-6 

BUllne,"-type Activities -
Enterprlll Fund. 

Milk Fund 

8,703.02 $ 8,703.02 

(15,581.28) (15,581.28) 

(6,878.26) (6,878.26) 

2,782.50 2,782.50 

2,782.50 2,782.50 

(4,095.76) (4,095.76) 

6,827.18 6,827.18 

2,731.42 S 2,731.42 

(6,878.26) S (6,878.26) 

(6,878.26) S (6,876.26) 



FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
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Exhibit B·7 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 
June 30,2019 

Private 
Unemployment Purpose 
Compensation Scholarship Agency 

Trust Fund fl!m! 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 103.051 .35 $ 3.287.00 $ 251.474.28 

Total Assets $ 103.051 .35 $ 3.287.00 $ 251.474.26 

LIABILITIES 
Interfunds Payable $ 49.740.88 
Payable to student groups 56.311 .74 
Payroll deductions and withholdlngs 145,421.64 
Flexible Spending 7.050.18 

Total Liabilities $ 251.474.26 

NET POSITION 
Held in trust for unemployment 

claims and other purposes $ 103,051 .35 
Reserved for scholarships $ 3,287.00 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement 
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ADDITIONS 
Contributions: 

Plan member 
Board Contribution 
Other 

Total Contributions 
Investment earnings: 

Interest 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Unemployment 
Compensation 

In!§! 

$ 15,801.74 

15,801.74 

951.80 
Net investment earnings 951.80 

Total Additions 16,753.54 

DEDUCTIONS 
Unemployment claims 6,732.64 
Scholarships awarded 

Total Deductions 6,732.64 
Change In Net Position 10,020.70 

Net Position-beginning 93,030.65 

Net Position-ending $ 103,051.35 

Exhibit B-8 

Private 
Purpose 

Scholarship 
Elms! 

$ 

35.61 
35.61 
35.61 

300.00 
300.00 

(264.39) 
3,551 .39 

$ 3,287.00 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Borough of Norwood School District (District) 
have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental 
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and fmancial reporting principles. In its accounting and financial reporting, the District 
follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant 
accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the District are discussed below. 

B. Reporting Entity 

The Borough of Norwood School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as 
an educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the 
District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District. 

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the 
GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. is the degree of oversight 
responsibility maintained by the District. Oversight responsibility includes financial interdependency, selection of 
governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for 
fIScal matters. The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the Board exercises 
operating control. The operations of the District include one elementary school located in Norwood. There were no 
additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as descn'bed above, in the current 
fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria. 

C. Basic Financial Statements- Government-Wide Statements 

The District's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as a whole) and fund 
financial statements (reporting the District's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements 
categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The District's general and special revenue 
activities are classified as governmental activities. The District's milk fund program is classified as a business-type 
activity. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are 
presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which 
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The District's net position 
are reported in three parts-invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net 
position. The District first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note I: Summary ofSignificaut AccOWlting Policies (Continued) 

C. Basic Financial Statements- Government-Wide Statements 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the District's functions 
and business-type activities. The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property taxes, 
ruitioR, certain intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including 
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly 
associated with the function (regular instruction, vocational programs, srudent and instruction related services, etc.) or 
a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) 
grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. 

The net costs (by function or business-type activity are normally covered by general revenue (property taxes, ruitioR, 
interest income, etc.). 

a. The District allocates indirect costs such as on-behalf TP AF Pension Contributions, on-behalf TP AF and 
PERS OPEB Contributions and Reimbursed TP AF Social Security Contributions. 

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the change in the District's 
net position resulting from the current year's activities. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements. 

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements 

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund 
is accounted for by providing a sep8J1lte set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, 
fund equity, revenues and expenditureslexpenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within the 
fmancial statements. 

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type activities 
category are summarized into a single column. GASBS No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, 
liabilities, revenues or expendirureslexpenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) 
for the determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements. 
The State of New Jersey Department of Education has mandated that all New Jersey School districts must report all 
governmental funds as major, regardless of the fund meeting the GASB definition of a major fund. However, the 
GASB criteria are applied to proprietary funds. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

S!!!!1!!U!!V of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

The following fund types are used by the District: 

Governmental Fund Types 

The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is upon detennination of financial 
position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net 
income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the District: 

General Fund - The genera! fund is the genera! operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all 
flll8llcial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain 
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified in the 
Capital Outlay subfund. 

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted Capital Outlay in 
this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that Genera! 
Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the 
resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. 

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district 
taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to 
fIXed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or 
remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from and 
to Current Expense by board resolution and, excluding equipment, with County Superintendent approval. 

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue from State 
and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local 
appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial resources to be used for 
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The 
financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specially authorized by the voters 
as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account fpr the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and 
improvement programs. 

rennanent Fund - A permanent fund is used to account for assets held under the terms of a formal trust 
agreement, wbereby the District is under obligation to maintain the trust principal. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Polici" (Continued) 

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following classifications of fund balance: 

Nonspendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not spendsble in form or are 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact 

Restricted - includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws or other governments, etc.) or by 
constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

Committed - includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes. Committed fund balance is 
reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board of Education, the District's highest level of decision 
making authority. Commibnents may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved by the 
Board of Education. 

Assigned - includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but do not meet the 
definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the District's policy, amounts may be assigned by 
the Business Administtator. 

Unassigned - includes amounts that bave not been assigned to other funds or restricted, committed or assigned 
to a specific purpose within the General Fund. The District reports all amounts that liIeet the unrestricted 
General Fund Balance Policy described below as unassigned. 

The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sbeet. When an expenditure is 
incurred for purposes for whicb both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers 
restricted funds to bave been spent first. When an expenditure is uncured for whicb committed, assigned, or 
unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers amounts to bave been spent first out of committed 
funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds as needed. 

Proprietary Fund Tvae 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, changes in net position, 
financial position and casb flows. The generally accepted accounted principles applicable are those similar to 
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the District: 

Enterorise Funds - The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated 
in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the District is that the costs (i.e. 
expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a 
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user cbarges; or, wbere the District has decided 
that the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, andlor net income is appropriate for 
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note I: Sununary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

D: Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements !Continued) 

The District's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Milk Fund. 

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprielaly funds is charged as an expense against their 
operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprielaly fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been 
provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as 
follows: 

Milk Fund: 
Equipment 
Light Trucks and Vehicle 
Heavy Trucks and Vehicle 

Fiduciary Fund Types 

12 Yeara 
4 Yeara 
6 Yeara 

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are not 
available to support District programs. The reporting focus is on net position and changes in net position and 
are reported using accounting principles similar to proprielaly funds. 

The District's fiduciary funds arc presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (Unemployment 
Compensation, private purpose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a 
third party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address 
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide 
statements. 

E. Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts 
and reported in the fmancial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the 
measurement of focus applied. 

I. Accrual: 

Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and proprielaly and 
fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
when incurred. 

2. Modified Accrual: 

The governmental fund fmancial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues arc recorded when susceptible to accruaJ; i.e., both measurable and 
available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures 
are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The 
exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, i. 
recognized when due. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note I: Summary of Sjgnificant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

3. Revenues: 

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are susceptible to accrual and under 
New Jersey State Statutes a municipality is required to remit to its scbool district the entire balance of taxes in the 
amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax 
levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available. 
Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or current operations, are reported as non 
operating revenue. In respect to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and recipient 
recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements are 
met Resoun:es transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider 
and deferred revenue by the recipient. Program revenues, including tuition revenue, are reported as reductions to 
expenses in the Statement of Activities. 

4. Expenditures: 

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the period 
when inventory items are used, rather than in the period of purchase. 

F. BudgetslBudgetarv Control 

The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and, as long as the District budget is within State 
mandated CAPs, there is no public vote on the budget If the budget exceeds State mandated CAPS, the voters 
have an opportunity to approve or reject the budget at the regular election held in November. 

Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is 
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) 
level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.AC. 6:23-2.2(1). All 
budget amendments must be approved by School Board resolution. Appropriation of additional fund balance in 
the amount of $333,338.79 and prior year encumbrances in the amount ofS66,327.21 were made during the year 
ended June 30, 2019. The Board of Education approved the following material budgetary appropriation transfers 
during the school year: 

Account Name 

Regular Programs - instruction: 
Kindergarten - Salaries of Teachers 

Regular Programs - Undistributed instruction 
General Supplies 

Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 
Salaries of Teachers 
Other Salaries for Instruction 

Resource RoomlResource Center: 
Salaries of Teachers 
Other Salaries for Instruction 

School-Spon. Cocurrlcutar Actvts. - Inst. 
Salaries 
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Amount 

$ 39,452.00 

81,702.00 

18,209.00 
79,304.09 

33,915.00 
21,359.00 

23,151.00 



BOARD Of EDUCATION 
BOROUGH Of NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC fINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

f . Budgets!Budgetarv Control (Continued) 

Account Name 

Undistributed Expenditues - Instrucdoo: 
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State· Special 
Tuition to Private Schools for the Disabled - Within State 

Undlst. Expend.· Speech,OT ,PT & Related Services 
Purchased Professional- Educational Services 

Undlst. Expend. - Chlld Study Team 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Undis!. Expend. - Supp. Servo - General Admin.: 
Legal Services 

Undist. Expend. - AUowlble Maint. For School FaciUdes 
Salaries 
General Supplies 

Undist. Expend. - Custodial Services: 
Salaries 
insurance 
General Supplies 

Undist. Expend. - Student Transportadon Serv.: 
Contracted Svcs (Bet Home and School) - Joint Agreements 
Contracted Svcs (Special Ed. Students) - Joint Agreements 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 
Group insurance 
Social Security Contributions 
Other Retirement Contributions - PERS 
Other Retirement Contributions - DCRP 
Workmen's Compensation 
Health Benefits 
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Amount 

(40,202.94) 
147,162.40 

65,525.00 

(12,190.22) 

(12,400.00) 

26,910.00 
(16,009.61) 

(44,632.10) 
31,540.00 
50,729.00 

(21,630.00) 
27,090.00 

(16,461.00) 
(43,800.00) 
(13,658.00) 
12,165.00 

(25,409.00) 
(103,531.01) 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

F. BudgetslBudgetary Control (Continued) 

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the 
year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and 
generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of legally mandated revenue recognition of the one or 
more June state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below. 
Encumbrance accoWlting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental 
fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 

The accoWlting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The 
grant accoWlting budgetary basis differs from GMP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes 
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GMP basis does not 
Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GMP basis financial reports. 

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received advances are reOected in the 
balance sheet as Wlearned revenues at fiscal year end. 

The reconciliation of the general and special revenue funds from the budgetary basis of accoWlting to the GMP 
basis of accounting is as follows. 

Sources/inflows of resources 
Actual BI!lounts (budgetary basis) 'revenue' 

from the budgetary comparison schedule 
Difference - budget to GAAP: 

The last two State aid payments are recognized as revenue for budgetary 
purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this 
revenue until the subsequent year when the State recognizes 
the related expense in accordance with GASB 33. 

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that 
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related 
revenue is recognized. 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. 

Uses/outflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) 'total outflows' from the 

budgetary comparison schedule 
Differences - budget to GAAP 

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but 
not received are lqJorted in the year the order is placed for 
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received 
for financial reporting purposes. 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 
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General 
Fund 

$ 12,48S,S91.02 

(4,608.00) 

$ 12480 9HJ 02 

$ 12,809,681.S0 

$ 12899681,50 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

S 202,061.1 0 

13,343.69l 

$ 19871741 

$ 202,061.10 

13,343.69) 

$ 19871741 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note I: SU!I!!!I8!Y ofSjgnificant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

G. Assets. Liabilities and Fund Equity 

I. Deposits and Invesbnents 

Deposits are cash and cash equivalents including petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued 
interest. Other than Certificates of Deposit, deposits with maturities of greater than three months are considered 
to be InveSbnents. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or 
less wben purchased are stated at cost All other invesbnents are stated at fair value. 

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of invesbnents and types of financial institutions they 
may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of pennissible invesbnents that may be purchased 
by New Jersey school districts. 

2. Short - term Interfund ReceivableslPayables 

Short - term interfund receivableslpayables represents amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or 
services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year. 

3. Inventories 

Inventories, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund are recorded as 
expenditure during the year of purchase. 

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in-first-out (FIFO) 
method. 

4. Capital Assets 

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $2,000 or more are reported at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received. 
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are 
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repain and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on the 
following assets is provided on the straight - line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Land Improvements 
Other Infrastructure 

20-50 years 
5-10 years 

10-20 years 
10-50 years 

Land and Construction in Progress are not depreciated. 
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Note I: Summary of Significant ACCounting Po!icies (Continued) 

G. Assets. Ljabilities and Fund Equity (Continued) 

4. Capital Assets (Continued) 

GASB No. 34 requires the District to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective with the 
beginning of the current year. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been 
reported in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure is subject to an extended 
implementation period and is first effective for fiscal years ending in 2006. 

S. Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and 
sabbatical leave. A !iability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and 
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, is 
accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, 
or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are 
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place. 

In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be !iquidated with 
expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund !iability in the fund that will 
pay for the compensated absences. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in subsequent 
fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconci!ing item between the 
fund and government - wide presentations. (See Note XII) 

6. Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash which bas been received but not yet earned. See 
Note I(F) regarding the special revenue fund. 

7. Long - term Ob!igations 

Long - term debt is recognized as a !iability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources have been 
accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long - term 
ob!igations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported 
as a fund !iability of a governmental fund. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in 
subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item 
between the fund and government - wide presentations. 

8. Fund Equity 

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary funds from other funds. 
Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a 
specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans for future use of financial resources. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting PoUcies (Continuedl 

G. Assets. LiabjIities and Fund Equity (Contjnued) 

9. Net Position 

Net Position represents the difference between assets and Uabilities in the District-wide financial statements. 
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balance of any 10ng-teIID debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net position is reported 
as restricted in the District-wide financial statements when there are limitations imposed on their use through 
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grsntors, or laws or regulations of other governments. 

10. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reports, amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

II. Allocation of Costs 

In the government-wide statement of activities, the District has allocated unallocated benefits to various 
programs based on the original budgetary expenditures by program. 

H. Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Effective 

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 87 "Leases". This 
statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2019, could have significant effects on 
the entity's financial reporting and the provisions of this statement could require significant modifications to 
disclosure requirements. 
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y&ARENpEQJUNE19 2019 

t:l1I" II· a"lIlHiilialiwl g(Qa~mmmJ Wids: DoDd El.Iod fiDIID,iDl SIIII,m'DII 

Exptanalion ofDifTerence! between Governmental Fund! Balance Sheet and the Slalemem ofNeI Position 

"Total fund balanecs~ ofthc OCiIrict'! govemmental fund! in 8·1 dirrcn from -nel posilion- of governmental activities 
reported in the staleme", ofnel posilion in A-I , This difference primarily results from the long· tcnn ceonomic focus 
oflhe slItcmenl ofnel position versus tbe current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balanec sheets. 

1l111D1i' SI=L!SIIII'IIl'DI a[N;1 Ei!liiliDD 
Statement 

Total Lona- tenn of Net 
Govemmenlal Assets Reclassifications Po!ilion 

I!.IxlI flIwl> UibiJilj,s (I) and FJjmjn.tjons llUII1 

Casb and castJ equivnlents S 772,010.48 S S (114,108.79) S 6S7,901.69 
Receivabks, net 430,341.77 430,341.77 
Inlerf\md Receivables 148,108.60 (98,708.60) 50,000.00 
Receivables from Other Governments 429.341.71 (429,341.77) 
O\her Receivables 1,00000 (1,000.00) 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 114,108.79 114,108.79 
Capilal Reserve Account· cuh 1,962,608.76 1,962,608.76 

Capital Assets, net 6.191.194.92 6.191.794.92 
TowAsscts 3,313,66961 6,191,794.92 {98.708.6O) 9.406,7SS.93 

Q,r(am QYIOII:W a[BmllWi'l 
Deferred ourtlows related 10 pcruions S94.361.OO 594,361.00 

Total Deferred Outflows ofRtsoufCcs S94,361.00 594,361.00 

Total Assets and ecfermj Qu1rlows ofRcsourees S 3.313,669.61 S 6,786,155.92 S (98,708.60) S 1O,00t.l 16.93 

Liabilili<J 

IntctfuOOs Paytblc S 99,209.38 S (98,708.60) S 500,18 
Payable to Federal Government S36.63 536.63 
Bond Interest Payable 21,56875 21,568.75 
Deferred Revenue 4,205.25 4,205.25 
Othor 215,OS7.00 215,057.00 
Noncurrenl Liabilities 4.645.662.00 IS3,578.88 4.799~40.88 

Total Liabilities 3191008.26 4.645.662.00 76,439.03 S10411109.29 

DSir .. m:d InODW g[B'Sl:IIO:GI 
Deferred inflows ~latc4 to pensions 942.SS3.00 942.SS3.OO 

Total Defened Inflows ofRQourtcs 942.5S3.00 942,5S3.OO 

Total Liabilities and Dererred Innows ofRcsourees 319.1)08.26 5,588,2)5.00 76,439.03 SI983.662.29 

FUM BNlIllCc¥N,1 Pnsilian 
Net Pgsjljgn 

Net investment in capital assets 3,126,794.92 3.726,794.92 
Restricted for: 

Capiw projects 2,257,836.30 2,2S1,836.30 
Debt Service 6,683.55 (21,568.75) (14,885.20) 
Other purposes 411.144.68 411,144 .68 

Unrcstrictl:d 318,996.82 !2~28,854.00) (153,578.88) 12,363,436.06) 

Total Fund Bn1an«sINct Position 2.994.661.3S 1.191.940.92 (175,147.63) 4.oJ7A54.64 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows ofResourtcs 
and Fund Balanccs/Net Position S 3~1J,669.61 S 617861ISS.92 S i98,708.60> S 1°1°01,116.93 
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BOROUGH Of NORWOOD 

NOTES m BASIC flNAWCIAL STAIEMENTS 
)'EAR ENDED ulNE JQ 2019 

Not; II Rcconc;i1i,tjon o(Qoyemm;nl Wid; And fund fjnlndaJ SlAIem;nt, lCnrnjn!!sdl 

Explanation ofDifTerentei between Gomnmental Funds Balante Sheet and the Statement orNet Position (Continued) 

I, When Capital Assets (land, buildings, equipment) that arc 10 be used in governmental aclivities arc purchased or 
cOrLStnu:tcd, the cost of those IWCts are reported as expenditures in governmental (\mds. However, the stOlement 
of net poSition includC5lhosc capitol assets among the assets of the District u a whate. 

Cost of capital assets 
Accumulated depreciation 

$ 12,615,938.96 
(6424,144.04) 

$ 6,191,79492 

Long. term liabilities apptkabtc lo the Oisbict's governmental activities are not due and payable in the current pcriod 
and Accordingly are nol reported as fund Iiabilitic.t. AJllilbilities· bath cumn! and lona·tcnn arc reported in the 
statement of net posilion. 

Adjuslmentto Debt Service Fund net position for the 
OtcruaJ ofinterest expcrLSe. 

Net PERS Pension Liability 
Qcferred outflows related to pensions 
Deferred inflows related 10 pensiom 

Serial Bonds 
Compcnsaled Absences 

50 

S 

$ 

S 

S 

S 

2,180,662,00 
(594,361.00) 
942.553.00 

21'281854.00 

2,465,000.00 
IS3.S78.88 

21618.'78.88 

PI1S6a.7S) 



BnBO!!GH OF NORWgOD 

Npto II· Rc:m ... ;r;,'j"" Q(Ogyanmm! Wld,.,4 fund (IOwit! S!'!nnmll (Cm,in"M) 

Elcplwtion orOilTuenca bdwall Oowtl'lllllenlll FWMb Opetllin, Statement or Activities 

Tho "MI _p in rund b&/Inca" ror ,OWI!MlenW runcb in B·] d.ffm (rom III. "chanl' in n., polition" for lowcmmenlll 
Idi.ities rcpottcd ill !he NCI/IICIII or act!\'I1iCI ill 04·2. l1M difference wise primuiIy ror .. ~ , tena tcorIOIIIic CocIII 
of .. ~ of IdiYiticl Yen." ~ J\nIndIl raourca foao of.". lovemmcnlll fundt. Th. effect of tIM 
dialm\Celll iHusl3led below. 

S'wmmt pl!.,.....," fynm'jDtm nod Ow," in fled RallPsclSlI'tmml pCt\ctiyjljlll 

T ... '-->om C ..... LGnI' """ 
Ool'Cmlftcnlal "'-... "' ... Do" 

BnP'''" "'" "!bcr Spy...., - ......... "-ill IlIDIiKl_I!) 
Local T_t.nr S IO,Zl5l,IUOO S S 
TuitionOwtes 111,5113.14 
lnicrat Earned oelnvatlacllu l',979.91 
MistelllllORlll 311,m.11 
SW,SQIII;a 1."',944.10 
FllfenlSlI\II'eei 191111.41 

T,'" n 109 III Ol --C""'" 
ReJlllar instruction l,O]),04I.6' 100,6514.66 
SpedII ahIcacioa 1,0\),104,)5 17,$15.151 
OlhtflllllnlClion ]0'.'111.2] 

Suppan Semc. a.d ~ co ... : 
Tuilion 1,11'.155.21 
SllIdllllllld ~ relPIlenbi U •• ,116.41 10,1.6.)1 
SdIo6I fldmillimsjw Im'k:a 140,114.11 6,92731 
Omen! and burineu Idministnlth' Imica 'ti],611.91 16,616.1' 
P'- opeBlioftI_1tIIinseNra 116,141.16 6,791,00 
Pllpilllll1lporwion UII,9U.1l 
Unalillatrd B.ncOtl 1,111)10.19 

Capitll 0IIIlay 720,'.0.4] (711,2694) 
Debt Scrwiu; ....... )4'.000.00 ,,,,, .. '0,150.00 U,Dll.~O) 

T"" 1l'~4141.91 '~OIU~) (}04m,6') 

Oilier finMcitlt UtWCtwlta .. I"ct Aaetr. 
Net T,..(ers Io(from) othct lUnda (1.712.50) 

Toul (Ull.5O) 

N~ Chine. (RftM Yea' pp,I9I.lI) ~otl.SO , )0.91.61 S 

1. ... the JIIIC!Mnt of It&i,;ties, inMrat on !oat ·Wtn debt ill tlMlutemaII. 1I(.ai"*a is Ka1*1. nprdk:n flf what.-. In tIM JRwenwncntII 
I\Ni, interat is reponed when dye. l1M accrurd Intmlt is III addition in thI RCOtItiti4dons. (+) 

l. C.pilll oul1l)1: "" rep!IfWI in ,o¥emnMfllII fLawb AI ClpenditllfU. Ifowwvtl', in Iho IWanIflI of .wvities. III, *1 of thole IadJ is 
aI/oc:Ued own !heir alimllMi IInI\!I lives &I ~ cpcnM. ThiI is 1M dOU't 'Ai\iehUipital 0IIIIt)"I ~ d~1Uon in !he period. 

Dqftciecbt apense 

19,9014' 
10,61116 
1,]76.:16 

l1.'9UI 
2,6670] 
4.1,Sl.7' 

14.1,,"01 

(34',000,00) 

(26' n~.19) 

261 W .N 

Ralwm~ons 

IiIII EiimiMlir>no In 
S 

l,ltl,'W,OO 

1 " 1 109.00 

1.014,.99.64 
6U,191.05I 

"6,)66..' 
'M,I'US 
119,914.19 
l.2,6fl.M 
]29 •• '0.79 

(l,W,no.79) 

1 ]U .61.00 

110,!41.oo 

ClpillllllltlllYl (er.dusiw. IIfQllitalleu, principl ~1I1W1 SDA Debt Servieo AuCSImGII) 

] . III the IWanenI o(~vicia., only .... ,Iia 011 tIM dUpasaI ot~ &IICb is rqIRnId. ,, __ Ie! .. ~ fIroIb, 1M prRte'OIb 

from ual, inmu. nMldll tcsourcet. ThUl, me chin,. in net..sell will differ from the dwI,e in fund balance by the ""t orlhl w., tcmomi. (.J 

4. III the IIIICnIenI o(klivitia, ~ opeminJ CXpe!lJ&S, e. .. cotnpaIUIldlbtcnta (vlClliRns) Itt m=\II'CCI "" Ihe ImIM\U WMd 

durina the)'Uf. In the ,Dwtmmcnlll fundi, hllwr\'Cl'. cxpenditlftl fOf these j\al\S Itt rcpon.d in the amRunl tIC n"",dII IUllurus used 
(plid). When 11M arned I!I'IDIIn& ~ the,.d hOUIIt, \hI",crace is RdllCiiorl in !he llICCIdr __ t·), -..ben .. ptlid ~ 
cxtetlb tho eamed amlllllilhe diffllftlltll is III addilion III th, ru:oneiliation (<f). 

Oo-W (INs repon dislrid pension tontriblltU:.w U ClIpillllilllR:s. In \he 111I_t oCKtiwila, hDwevtr, the COil OCpC!\lIOll beneOu 
amcd nil or empio)ft COIIlributiont is RPOl1cd &I pCMiRII npaue. 

Repa)ft1C11'4 ofdRln and upilalleue ~pal is 11\ npendilllnl ill 11111 IRvemm.nlfilndl, bU11ho Pl)lIICftl reduces 10lIl - term liabilities in th' IIaIeIftInI or 

nil utetllI'Id is ~ tepRf'4ed itl tM tWemalt of ICIiwilics. 
Debt prindpll 
Capi1IIleu, princi!"l 

4. Proc:eeds from debl iuua Itt 1 fllllncinp: IOIIfCCI in .. to,Cl'M'ltnIal r-s.. The)o In aot_iIIlhIlWmIIIII ol~,1uuina 
dcbllnc!cuitt 10111" lerm lIabiliuu in tho .lItetncnl of nel Will. 

Prvc:ecds or""'" tlnftdtbl. 
C,pllllieue proteldl 

"noat, 8encfitl apaMlillll'leI and elimilllle PERS tontriblltlClft (S II 0,)42.00) 

S. QASB 61 and 7S IdjllJunentl fttpl'" OPEa IIn.beNlfpl)1'llCllll1I'Id rewa\ueI "lib PCI\Slon and OPEB ElpC!\lellllld itlYe!lllel ISI ,l91,109.00) 
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S 

s 

s_ 
of 

o4cliritia ,.... 
10,]151,IUOO 

HI,91l,14 
)),5179.91 

lll,II111 
l,"4.n] 10 

151171141 
14 ~64].0) 

',111,150.41 
1.1U,14,.19 

J6oI)Jl 91 

1.71',155.21 
1.012,661" 

4)0,364.01 
911,»' 61 

1,171,lll.n 
uun II 

1.576.00 

1IllUO 
I. 101 97 • . 'U 

Q,71l.'0) 
(l,111.50) 

)KIIO.n 

!t0IBO 

()6',110.75) 
7I226U] 

141,491.61 

(9,914.57) 

(66,159.64) 

3H,OOO OO 

16Ul!I,19 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note III: Detajled Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues 

A Deposits and Investments 

Deposits 

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in institutions located in New Jersey which are insured 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance COIporation (FDIC), the Savings Association Insurance Fund, or by any 
other agencies of the United States that insure deposits or the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund. 

N.J.S.A 17:9-41 et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The 
statute requires that no governmental unit shaU deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds 
are secured in accordance with the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act. Public depositories include 
Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which 
are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to 
five percent of the average daily balance of coUected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental 
Units. If a public depository fails, the coUateral it has pledged, plus the coUateral of all other public 
depositories, is available to pay the fuU amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units. 

At June 30, 2019 the Borough of Norwood School District's cash and cash equivalent's amounted to 
$3,220,690.65. Of this amount, $250,000.00 was covered by federal depository insurance (F.D.I.C.) and 
$2,970,690.65 was covered by a coUateral pool maintained by the banks as required by GUDPA. 

At June 30, 2019 the Borough of Norwood School District's had no participation in the State of New Jersey 
Cash Management Fund. 

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disc/osures, requires the disclosure of bank deposits 
that are subject to custodial credit risk. The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of 
the failure of a depository financial institution, the Borough of Norwood School District wiU not be able to 
recover deposits or wiU not be able to recover coUateral securities that may be in the possession of an outside 
party. 

As of June 30, 2019, none of the Borough of NOIwood School District's cash and cash eqnivalents of 
$3,220,690.65 was exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note III: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Asseta and Revenues (Contjnuedl 

A. Deposita and Invesboenta (Continued) 

Invesboenta 

New Jersey statutes (N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37) pennit the Borough of NolWood School District to purchase the 
following types of securities: 

a. When authorized by resolution adopted by a majority vote of all ita members the board of education of 
any school district may use moneys which may be in haod for the purchase of the following types of securities 
which, if suitable for registry, may be registered in the name of the school district; 

(I) Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the United 
States of America; 

(2) Government money market mutual funds; 
(3) Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with an 

act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 dsys from the date of purchase, 
provided that such obligation bears a fixed mte of interest not dependent on any index or other external factor; 

(4) Bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations oflocal unit or units 
within which the school district is located; 

(S) Bonds or other obligations, baving a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of 
purchase, approved by the Division oflnvesboent of the Deparboent of the Treasury for investment by school 
district; 

(6) Local government investment pools: 
(7) Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fuod established pursuant to section I of 

P.L. 1977, c.2BI (C.S2:IBA-90.4) or 
(B) Agreements for the repurchase of fully collatera1ized securities, if: 

(a) the uoderlying securities are pennitted invesboents pursuant to paragmphs (I) and (3) of this 
subsection a; 

(b) the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party; 
(c) the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days; 
(d) the underlying securities are purchased through a public deposito!), as defined in section 1 of 

P.L. 1970, c.236 (C.l7:9-41) aod for which a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody aod 
security of collateral is executed. 

The Borough of Norwood School District had DO invesboents as described in Notel:G.1 atJune 30, 2019. 
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BOARD OF EPUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note ill: petailed Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues (Continued) 

B. Interfund Receivables and Pavables 

As of June 30, 2018, interfund receivables and payables resulting from various interfund transactions were as 
follows: 

General Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 
Debt Service Fund 
Trust and Agency Fund 

Due from 

Other Funds 

$ 50,000.00 
90,213.02 

8,495.58 
0.00 

$149,20938 

Due to 

Other Funds 

$ 90,713.80 
8,495.58 

50,000.00 
$14929938 

New Jersey statute requires that interest earoed on the investments in capital projects fund be credited to the 
general fund or debt service based on Board resolution. In accordance with Board resolution, accrued interest as 
of June 30, 2019 in the amount of $4,507.60 was transferred to debt service fund to offset future interest payments 
to bondholders. Accordingly, an interfund accounts receivable and payable for $8,495.58 was established in the 
debt service and capital projects funds, respectively. 
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BOARP OF EPUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED IUNE 30 2019 

Note UJ: Detailed Pisclosure ReRardinS Assets and Revenues (Continued) 

C. C,pill! Assets 

Capita! asset a<livily for the ycar ended lune 30, 2019 was IS follows: 

Govtmmcntal activities: 
Capita! assets not being depr«iatcd: 

Land 
Construction in Progress 

Total CapillI assets not beins depreciated 

Buildinp and Improvements 
Macbinery and Equipment 

Total! at historical cost 

Less 8Ctumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and Improvements 
Machinery and Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Net Clpital assets being depreciated 

Governmental activities capitaiassets, net 

Business. type activities: 
Equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Business - type activities capillI assets, net 

S 

$ 

S 

$ 

Beginning 
!lim 

68,171.00 

66,171.00 

11,335,"7.42 
500,341.11 

11,835,498.53 

(5,706,872.17) 
1348,50J.J2) 

(6,055,373.29) 
5,780,125.24 

5.848,296.24 

846.00 
(846.00) 

S 

S 

S 

S 

(I) Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 
Instruction $ 
Special Education 
Otber Instruttion (Athletic and Media) 
Student and Instruction Related Smices 
School Administrative Services 
General and Business Administrative Services 
Plant Opellliions and Maintenance 
Pupil Transponation 

S 

55 

712,269.43 

712,269.43 

(339,825.73) 
(28,945.02) 

1368,770.75) (I) 
343,498.68 

343,498.68 

300,694.66 
17,525.19 

10,146.31 
6,927.31 

26.686.28 
6,791.00 

368.770.75 

S 

$ 

S 

S 

Disposals or 
Adiushnmts 

S 

$ 

$ 

S 

Endins 
~ 

68,171.00 

68,171.00 

12,047,426.85 
5OO~41.11 

12,547,767.96 

(6,046,697.90) 
1377,446.14) 

(6,424,144.04) 
6,123,623.92 

6,191,794.92 

846.00 
(846.00) 



BOARp QF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF NORWoop 

NOlES TO BASIC fINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2019 

Note IV: Iletaj1e4 Pisclp'U£es Regarding liabilitiet and ExpensHExpendjturq 

A. Qpmtjnq Lew 

The Oisbict hu commitments to lcase copien and computer tQuipment unclcr opcratinslcases which expire in 2020. Total opcratinslcuc paymcNs made 
during the year endcdJunc lOt 2019 were $127,401.70. fut~ minimwn lcase payments are u follows: 

1 .... 30.2020 
June 30, 2021 

yevEnded 

TolIl future minimum lease paymentJ 

B. Lon'· tenD li!bilitjg 

Lon,· Tenn liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as rollows: 

Oovernmental activities: 
Lona· Tmn debt: 

Serial Bonds 
TOlaI debt payable 
Other liabilities: 

Compensated absences 
Total other lilbilitieJ 

Oovernmental activities 
long· tcnn liabilities 

(I) Paid by debt service fund 
(2) Plid by scncraI fund 

s 

s 

8cginnins 
I!al!m 

2.810.000.00 
2,810,000.00 

143,664.31 
143,664.31 

2,953.664.31 

S 

9,914.57 
9,914.57 

S 9,914.57 

S6 

s 

s 

S 

S 

38.905.36 
31.359.03 

70,264.39 

Reductio", 

(345,000.00) 
(345,000.00) (I) 

(2) 

1345,000.00) 

S 

S 

Endina 
flIIw< 

2,465,000.00 
2,465,000.00 

1ll~78.88 

1ll,578.88 

2,618,578.88 

S 

S 

-OucWilhin 
QJm..Ym 

350,000.00 
350,000.00 

2,700.00 
2,700.00 

352,700.00 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note IV: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Liabilities and ExpensesIExpenditures (Continued) 

B. Long - Tenn Liabilities (Continued) 

I. Bonds Payable 

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the votelll of the municipality through referendwns. All 
bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are 
general obligation bonds. 

Serial Bonds outstanding as of June 30,2019 consisted of the following: 

Description 

Refunding Scbcol Bond Various 3/15 

Maturity 
Date 

2026 

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows: 

Fiscal yem, Principal ~ 

2019-2020 5350,000.00 573,950.00 
2020-2021 355,000.00 63,450.00 
2021-2022 350,000.00 52,800.00 
2022-2023 345,000.00 42,300.00 
2023-2024 350,000.00 31,950.00 
2024-2025 360,000.00 21,450.00 
2025-2026 355.000.00 10,~SO.Q2 

S 'I~QSlggg Qg S ~2~ ~~g gg 
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Amount Issued Amount 
Outstanding 

53,510,000.00 52,465,000.00 
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Note IV: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Liabilities and Expenses!Expendi!ures (Continued) 

C. Long - Term Liabilities (ConJinuedl 

2. Temporary Notes 

There were no Temporary Notes outstanding as of June 30,2019. 

3. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued 

There were no authorized but not issued bonds as of June 30, 2019. 

4. Capital Leases Payable 

There were no capital leases payable as of June 30, 2019. 

Note V: Detailed pisclosure Regarding Fund Equity 

A. Capital Reserve ACCOunt 

A capital reserve account was established by the Borough of Norwood School District Board of Education by 
inclusion of $1.00 during the 2000-2001 school year for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay 
expenditures subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its 
activity is included in the general fund annual budget. 

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district's approved Long Range 
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the dcpartmen~ a district may increase the balance in 
the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by 
board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amoun~ or both. 
A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained 
either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized 
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to NJ.A.C. 6A:23A-14.I(g), the balance in the account cannot at any 
time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP. 
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Note V: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Fund Eouity (Continued) 

A. Capital Reserve Account (Continued) 

The activity of the capital reserve for the period July I, 2010 to June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

Beginning balance, July 1,2010 
2010-2011Interest Earnings 
2010-2011 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 
2011-2012 Interest Earnings 
2011-2012 Resolution (Unreserved Fuod Balance) 
2012-2013 Interest Earnings 
2012-2013 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 
2012-2013 Transferred Debit Service Fund 
2013-2014 Interest Earnings 
2013-2014 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 
2013-2014 Budget Expenditures 
2014-2015 Interest Earnings 
2014-2015 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 
2014-2015 Transfer to Fund 30 
2014-2015 Budget Expenditures 
2015-2016 Interest Earnings 
2015-2016 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 
2015-2016 Budget Expenditures 
2016-2017 Interest Earnings 
2016-2017 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 
2016-2017 Budget Expenditures 
2017-2018 Interest Earnings 
2017-2018 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 
2017-2018 Budget Expeoditures 
2018-2019 Interest Earnings 
2018-2019 Budget Expenditures 

Balance June 30, 2019 

$139,519.21 
1,120.25 

738,000.17 
253.93 

779,481.58 
2,199.95 

508,155.67 
(25,000.00) 

3,094.29 
687,741.98 
(375,000.00) 

4,656.01 
851,041.16 

(353,903.00) 
(142,000.00) 

5,191.10 
448,852.31 

(406,600.00) 
12,076.41 

632,380.12 
(693,465.46) 

26,559.06 
417,533.29 

(604,100.00) 
21,623.16 

1712,269.43) 

$1 962698.76 

The June 30, 2019 LRFP balance oflocal support costs of uncompleted capital projects at June 30, 2019 is 
$4,180,956.00. 
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SubstantiallY all of the Board's employees participate in one of the following contributory dermed benefit public 
employee retirement systems which have been established by State statute: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 
(TPAF) or the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program 
(DCRP). These systems are sponsored and administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The 
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund retirement system is considered a cost sharing plan with special funding 
situations as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the 
Board and the system's other related non-contributing employers. The PERS is considered a cost sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit plan. The DCRP is considered a cost sharing multiple-employer defined contribution plan. 

The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established in January 1955, under the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 
43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time employees of the State 
or any county, municipality, school district or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State­
administered retirement system. 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retiremen~ death and disability 
benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service 
or under the disability provisions ofPERS. 

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS: 

Tier Definition 
I Members who were enrolled prior to July I, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July I, 2007 and prior to November 2,2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 20 10 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22,2010 and prior to June 28, 2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011 

Service retirement benefits of 1155" of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier I and 2 
members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1160" of 
final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 
members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier I and 2 members before reaching age 
60, tier 3 and 4 members before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more years of 
service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires 
prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. 
Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. 
Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the 
service retirement age for the respective tier. 
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Note VI: Pension Plans <Continued) 

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TP AF) was established in 1955, under the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 18:66, to 
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full-time public school employees in the 
State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension benelits 
and 25 for post-retirement health care coverage. 

The vesting and benelit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TP AF provides retiremen~ death and disability 
benelits. All benelits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benelits, which vest after 25 years of service 
or under the disability provisions of TP AF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after 
three years of service credi~ become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of 
death before retirement, members' beneliciaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts. 

The following represents the membership tiers for TP AF: 

Tier Definition 
I Members who were enrolled prior to July I, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July I, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 20 10 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22,2010 and prior to June 28, 2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011 

Service retirement benelits of 1155" of Iina1 average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier I and 2 
members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benelits of 1160110 of 
final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 
members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benelits are available to tier I and 2 members before reaching age 
60, tier 3 and 4 members before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more years of 
service credit before age 65. Benelits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires 
prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benelits in accordance with their respective tier. 
Tier I members can receive an unreduced benelit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. 
Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the 
service retirement age for the respective tier. 

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established as of July I, 2008 under the provisions of 
Chapter 92, P.L. 2008 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 (NJSA43:15C-I etseq .. ). The DCRP is a cost sharing multiple­
employer defined contribution pension fund. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries with a 
tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement beneli~ along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and 
benelit provisions are established by NJSA 43: 15C-I et seq .. 

According to the state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey 
should any retirement systems terminate. The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions 
and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required 
supplementary information of each of the above systems. The financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey 
Division efPensiens and Benefits website at www.state.nLus/!reasurvloensions. 
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Note VI:Pension Plans (Continued) 

Contribution Requirements 

The contribution policy for PERS is set by NJ,S,A, ISA and requires contributions by active members and contributing 
employers, State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the employer, The employer's pension 
contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and 
an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability, For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the employer's pension 
contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount. 

The contribution policy for TPAF is set by N,J,S,A, 18A:66 and requires contributions by active members and 
contributing employers, State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the State, The State's pension 
contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and 
an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability, For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the State's pension 
contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount. 

The District's total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $5,879,088.49 and covered payroll was 
$4,378,498,00 for TPAF, 5741,220,00 for PERS and 5240,535,09 for DCRP, Contributions to the TPAF, PERS and 
the DCRP for the last three years made by the employees, Borough of Norwood School District and the State were as 
follows: 

Percent of Percent of Percent of 
Covered Covered Covered 

IfAf fmQll f&M ~ IlQl,f fmQll 

Employees 6/30/17 $300,635,74 7,39% $53,913,88 7,20% 59,107.43 5,60% 
6/30/18 329,231.36 7,60% 62,032,72 7,50% 6,435,03 5,50% 
6/30/ 19 336,077.56 7,68% 56,322,86 7,60% 13,229,33 5,50% 

District 6/30/17 N/A N/A % $106,117,00 14,17 % 54,357,38 2,57% 
6/30/18 N/A NlA% 106,787,64 12,91 % 3,507,04 3,00% 
6/30/19 NlA N/A% 110,342,00 14,89 % 7,216.06 3,00% 

State ofNJ 6/30/17 5421,961.00 10,37 % N/A N/A% N/A N/A% 
6/30/18 579,139,00 13,37 % N/A N/A% N/A N/A% 
6/30/19 782,957,00 17,88 % N/A N/A% N/A N/A% 

In accordance with NJ,S,A, 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board 5315,206,10 during the year 
euded June 30, 2019 for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on 
their base salaries, This amount and the State of New Jersey's Contribution to the TPAF and PERS for OPEB have 
been included in the basic financial statements and the budgetary comparison schedule - Genera! Fund as a revenue 
and expenditure in accordance with GASB 24, 
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Note VII: Public Employees Retirement System 

Summary of SIgnificant Accounting PoUdes 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the PERS and additions 
to/deductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Invesbnents are reported at fair value. 

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $2,180,662.00 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan 
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the 
District's proportion was 0.0110752545%, which was a decrease of 3.59% from its proportion measured as of June 
30,2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $70,235.00. At June 30, 2019, the 
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the fonowing 
sources: 

Difference between expected and 
actual experience 

Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and 

actual earnings on pension plan 
invesbnents 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between District contributions and 
proportionate share of 
contributions 

District contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of ReSOurces 

$ 

41,586 
359,337 

83,096 

110.342 
$594361 

$ 

11,244 
697,260 

20,455 

213,594 

$942,553 

$110,342 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2019, the plan measurement date is June 
30, 2018) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30. 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
Total 
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$ 15,135 
(20,955) 

(150,261) 
(130,248) 

(41.70n 
$ (328,036) 
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Note VII: Public Employees Retirement System CPERS) (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2018 measurement date was detcnnined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July I, 2017, which was rolled forward to June 30,2018. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation rate 

Salary increases: 
Through 2026 
Thereafter 

Investment rate of return: 

2.25% 

1.65% -4.15% (based on age) 
2.65% - 5.15% (based on age) 

7.00% 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (setback 
I year for males and females) for service retirement and beneficiaries of former members with adjustments for 
mortality improvements from the base year of 2012 based on Projection Scale AA. The RP-2000 Disability Mortality 
Tables (setback 3 years for males and setforward I year for females) are used to value disabled retirees. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July I, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period July I, 2011 to June 30,2014. 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at June 30, 2017) 
is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division 
of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018 are summarized in the following 
table: 

Long-Term 
Expected 

Target Real Rate 
Asset Class AlIQcaliQn ofBl:l!!m 

Absolute retumlrisk mitigation 5.00% 5.51% 
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00% 
U.S Treasuries 3.00% 1.87% 
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78% 
Public high yield 2.50% 6.82% 
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10% 
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60% 
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63% 
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6.61% 
Private real estate 2.50% 11.83% 
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23% 
U.S. equity 30.00% 8.19% 
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00% 
Emerging markets equity . 6.50% 11.64% 
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08% 
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Note VII: Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.66% as of June 30, 2018. This single blended 
discount rate was based on the 10Dg-term expected rate of return on pension plan invesbnents of 7.00%, and a 
municipal bond mte of 3.87% as of June 30, 2018, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Iodex 
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an avemge mting of ANAa or higher. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount mte assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current member cODtribution mtes and that contributions from employers will be made based on the 
contribution mte in the most recent fiscal year. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2046. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan invesbnents was applied to projected benefit payments 
through 2046, and the municipal bond mte was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the 
total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the Det pension liability calculated using the discount mte 
of 5.66%, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount mte that is I-percentage point lower (4.66%) or I-percentage point higher (6.66%) than the current 
rate: 

Current 
1% Discount 1% 

Decrease Rate Increase 
(4.66%l (5.66%) (6.66%) 

District's proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability $2,741,965 2,180,662 1,709,857 

Note VIII: Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TP AF) 

Summary of Slgniflcant Accounting PoUcles 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Teachers Pension and 
Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions toldeductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net position have been determined on 
the same basis as they are reported by the TP AF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Iovesbnents are reported at 
fair value. 
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Note VlII:Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAFl(Continued) 

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected a 
reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related Stale support, and the total portion of the net pension 
liability that was associated with the District were as follows: 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
associated with the District 

Total 

5 

24.425,863 

$24425,863 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total pension liability to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net pension liability 
was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the 
District's proportion was 0.00%, which was a decrease of 0.00% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the State (for the District) recognized pension expense of$I,423,942 and revenue 
of 51,423,942 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2018, the State (for the District) reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to TP AF from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between State 

contributions associated with the District and 
proportionate share of contributions 

State's contribution associated with the District 
subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 

66 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Of 
Resources 

543,685 
4,231,517 

62,256 

782.957 
55,620415 

Deferred 
Inflows 

Of 
Resources 

$ 36,838 
6,155,145 

2,218 

14,932 

$6209,133 
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Note VIII:TeaChelS Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)(Continued) 

$782,957 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from State contributions associated 
with the District subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2019, the plan 
measurement date is June 30, 2018) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pemion expense as follows: 

Year ended Juge 30. 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
Thereafter 
Total 

Actuarial Assumptions 

$ 154,183 
80,219 

(85,591) 
(57,294) 

(282,217) 
11.232504) 

$( J ,423 294) 

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2018 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July I, 2017, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2018. This actuarial valuation used the follOwing actuarial 
assumptions, applied all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation rate 

Salary increases: 
2011-2026 
Thereafter 

Investment rate of return: 

2.25% 

1.55% - 4.55% 
2.00% - 5.45% 

7.00% 

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the experience of TPAF members 
reflecting mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 6O-year average of Social Security data from 
1953 to 2013. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July I, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period July I, 2012 to June 30, 2015. 
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Note V1!l:Teachers Pension and Annujty Fund ITPAF1(Continuedl 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (1.00% aUune 30, 201S) is 
determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division ofInvestments and Division of 
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined 
using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in TPAF's Iarget asset allocation as of lune 30, 20lS are summarized in the 
following table: 

Discount Rate 

Asset Class 
Absolute return/risk mitigation 
Cash equivalents 
U.S Treasuries 
Investment grade credit 
Public high yield 
Global diversified credit 
Credit oriented hedge fuods 
Debt related private equity 
Debt related real estate 
Private real estate 
Equity related real estate 
U.S. equity 
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 
Emerging markets equity 
Buyouts/venture capital 

Target 
Allocation 

5.00% 
5.50% 
3.00% 

10.00% 
2.50% 
5.00% 
1.00% 
2.00% 
1.00% 
2.50% 
6.25% 

30.00% 
11.50% 
6.50% 
S.25% 

Long-Term 
Expected 
Real Rate 
of&!!!m 

5.51% 
1.00% 
I.S1% 
3.18% 
6.82% 
1.10% 
6.60% 

10.63% 
6.61% 

11.83% 
9.23% 
8.19% 
9.00% 

11.64% 
13.08% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4 .86% as of lune 30, 2018. This single bleoded 
discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 1.00%, and a 
municipal bond rate of 3.S1% as of lune 30, 2018, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index 
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of ANAa or higher. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the 
contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 50% of the actuarially determined contributions. 
Based on those. assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members through 2040. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan 
investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2040, and the municipal bond rate was applied to 
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability. 
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Note VIII:Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAf)(Continued) 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 4.86%, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is I-percentage point lower (3.86%) or I-percentage point higber (5.86%) than the current 
rate: 

District's proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability 

1% 
Decrease 
(3.86%) 

528,870,882 

Note IX: Health Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
(4.86%) 

24,425,863 

1% 
Increase 
(5.86%) 

20,740,977 

State Health Benefit State Fund - Local Education Active (including Prescription Drug Program Fund) - N.J.S.A. 
52:14-17.46a established the School Employees Health Benefits Program Fund which provides medical coverage to 
qualified active education participants. Also, education employees are eligible for the Prescription Drug Program 
coverage after 60 days of employment. 

General Information about the OPED Plan 

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan (Local Education Retired Plan) is a multiple­
employer defined benefit OPEB plan thst is administered on a pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets are 
accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. The Local 
Education Retired Plan provides medical, prescription drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and the 
covered dependents oflocal education employees. The State also offers dental care to retirees; however, since dental 
benefits are completely paid for by the retirees, there is no OPEB liability for these benefits. 

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to be funded by the 
State in accordance with N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f. According to NJ.S.A. 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer­
paid coverage to employees who retired from a board of education or county college with 25 years or more of service 
credit in, or retires on a disability pension from one or more of the following plans: TPAF, PERS, PFRS, or ABP. 
Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, future retirees eligible for postemployment medical covemge who have less than 
20 years of creditable service on June 28, 20 II will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health care 
coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the 
premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual retirement benefit 
and level of coverage. 
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Note IX:Heahh Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued) 

Summary of SIgnificant Accoundng PoUcles 

For purposes of measuring the liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, and expense 
associated with the State's requirement to contribute to the State Health Benefits Local Education Retired Employees 
Plan (OPEB), information about OPEB's fiducill1)' net position and additions toldeductions from OPEB's fiducill1)' 
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by OPEB. For this purpose, OPEB 
recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair 
value, except for money market investments and participating interest-eaming investment contracts that have a 
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost 

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability that reflected a 
reduction for State OPEB support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate 
share of the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was 
associated with the District were as follows: 

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
associated with the District 

Total 

$ 

17.190,663 

S 17190,663 

The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total OPEB liability to calculate the net OPEB 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net OPEB liability 
was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the District's 
proportion was 0.00%, which was a decrease of 0.00% from its proportion measured as ofJone 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30,2018, the State (for the District) recognized OPEB expense ofS731,I43 and revenue of 
$731,143 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2018, the State (for the District) reported deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on OPEB plan investments 
Changes in proportion 
State contrihutions subsequent to the 

measurement date 
Total 
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S 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Of 
Resources 

383,252 

335,148 
738.400 

Deferred 
Inflows 

Of 
Resources 

S (1,668,738) 
(3,853,375) 

(42,710) 

$ (S.564.823) 
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Note IX: Health Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued) 

ActuarIal Assumptions 

The collective total OPEB liability for the June 30, 2018 measurement date was detennined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July I, 2017, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2018. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation rate 

Salary increases: 
Through 2026 

Thereafter 

2.5% 

TPAF/ABP 

1.55 - 4.55% 
based on years 
of service 

2.00-5.45% 
based on years 
of service 

2.15-4.14% 
based on age 

3.15 - 5.15% 
based on age 

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee MaleIFemale 
mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the centra! year using the MP-2017 
scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Annuitant 
MalelFemale mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the centra! year using the MP-
2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Disabled MalelFemale mortality 
table with fully generational improvement projections from the centra! year using the MP-2017 scale. 

The actuarial assumptions used the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies 
for the periods July 1,2012 - June 30, 2015 and July I, 201! - June 30, 2014 forTPAF and PERS, respectively. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate for June 30,2018 and 2017 was 3.87% and 3.58%, respectively. This represents the municipal 
bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which 
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of ANAa or higher. 
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Note IX:Health Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued> 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the new OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 3.87%, as well as what the District's proportional share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is I-percentage point lower (2.87%) or I-percentage point higber (4.87%) than the current 
rate: 

District's proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability 

Health Care Trend 

1% Decrease 
(2.87%) 

$20,322,802 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
(3.87%) 

$17,190,663 

1% Increase 
(4.87%) 

$14,700,888 

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.8% and decreases 
to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after eigbt years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. 
For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 8.0% decreasing to a 5.0% long-tenn trend rate after seven 
years. For the Medicate Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% 
and will continue in all future years. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, as well as what the District's 
proportionate share of the net OPES liability would be if it were calculated using hea!thcare cost trend rates that are 
I-percentage-point lower or I-percentage-point higber than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

District's proportionate 
share of the net OPEB 
liability 

1% Decrease 

$14,209,080 
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Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rates 

$17,190,663 

1% Increase 

$21,133,909 
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Note X: Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the "Plan',) created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 403{b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permits participants to 
defer a portion of their salary until future years. Arnounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees 
until termination. retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency or upon death to their beneficiaries. 1be plan 
administrators are as follows: 

Equitable 
New York Met Life 
!NG 

All amounts of compensation deferred under this plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all 
income attributable to those amounts, property and rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other 
beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Borough of Norwood School District (without being restricted to the 
provisions of benefits under the Plan) subject only to the claims of the Borough of Norwood School District's genera! 
creditors. Participants' right under the Plan are equivalent to those of genera! creditors of the Borough of Norwood 
School District in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant 

The maximum amount of deferred compensation for any participant for any laxable year shall not exceed the lesser of 
$19,000.00 or 100 percent of the participant's includible compensation for the laxable year except as provided by the 
limited catch·up provision which may effect a participant's last three laxable years ending before a participant attains 
normal retirement age as defined by plan. 

During the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2019, the employees' contributions to the plan were $149.538.00 aod 
$176,410.85. 

Note XI: Risk Management 

New Jersey Unemplovrnent Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment 
Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, the District is required to 
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its 
account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. 

The following table is a summary of district contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the state for 
benefits paid and the ending balance of the district's trust fund for the current and previous two years: 

District Employee Arnount Ending 
Fis~!I! Y~!!r !:;ontril!utjons !:;gntril!l!tio!lll R~imbursed Balance 
2016·2017 $ 0.00 $ 15,467.48 $ 6,506.57 $ 82,872.86 
2017·2018 0.00 16,387.64 7,083.11 93,030.65 
2018·2019 0.00 15,801.74 6,515.34 103,051.35 

The Borough of Norwood Scbool District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors aod omissions; injuries to employees; aod natural disasters. 

The District is a member of the New Jersey School Board Association Insurance Group (the "Group"). 
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Note XI: Risk Management (Continued) 

The Group is both an insured and self-administered group of school districts established for the purpose of providing 
certain low-cost Workers' Compensation, Property Damage, Employer's Liability, Automobile and Equipment 
Liability, School Board Legal Liability and Boiler and Machinery insurance coverage for member school districts in 
order to keep local property taxes at a minimum. The District pays an annual assessment to the Group and should it 
be determined that payments received by the Group are deficient, additional assessments may be levied. Additionally, 
the Group maintains a contrsct of excess insurance with a commercial reinsuror to secure the payment of benefits. 

The District continues to carry commercial insurance coverage for all other risks of loss, including employee health 
and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in 
any of the past three fISCal years. 

Note Xll:Compensated Absences 

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for 
compensated absences anributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside 
the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. 

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District's personnel policies. In 
the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation. Sick leave benefits provide for 
ordinary sick pay and are paid upon retirement to employees with IS years of service. 

In the district-wide Statement of Net POjition, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one year are 
reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one year. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds as the 
benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2019, no liability existed for compensated absences in the Milk Fund. 

Note XIII:Contingent Liabilities 

The Borough of Norwood School District is a defendant in several lawsuits, none of which is unusual for a Board of 
Education of its size. Additional liabilities, if not covered by insurance, should not be material in amount. 

Note XIV :Subseguent Events 

The Borough of Norwood School District has evaluated subsequent events through September 25, 2019, the date 
which the financial statements were available to be issued and no additional items were noted for disclosure or 
adjustment. 
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ConIraded s.Mcas (Olhet IhWI ~ HolM end School) - Vendt OQG.21()..512 13,100.00 2.32lI.00 15,_29.00 15,424.81 1.12 
CantraCled s.Mcu (Between Home and School) _.k*1tAgl8ementl DQO.270-513 25,000.00 (21,630.00) 3,370.00 l ,OOO.i2 J6i.oa 
Contracted 5eMces (Special Ecu:alian SWdltntl) _ JoinI.~QOO.:z70..S15 70000.00 '0090.00 97090.00 gam·45 157.55 

Total Undist. &pend. - Student rranapoftaUon SeIY. 152100.00 8388.00 160486.00 159957.23 528•n 
UNALLOCATED IIENEfITS 

""""' ......... OC».29'·2tO 16,462.(JQ (18,461.001 1.00 1.00 
Social Soc:uity ConIrtMions IXJD.29'·22D 18:).066.60 143.800.,., '39,2fiUO ,n,186.86 2I.m .7ot 
Other RetiranenI Cormbutions - PERS 000-291·24, 124,000.00 (13,65UIO) 110,342.00 ,,0,342.00 
Olher RItifwmentContributiona - DCRP 000-291-249 7,320.153 12.165.00 19,465.153 19.485.28 0.35 
Uneo,"*"JUIet"4 Compensation 000-291·250 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 
Workml:n·.~ CJOO.2i'·260 60,48700 (25,409.00) 35,07lUlO 34,605.00 <413,00 ...... - QOO.291·270 1,582,718.00 (103,531.01) 1.479,'86." 1.46B,935.S4 'US1.<45 
TuiIionR~ GOG-291·280 27.000.00 0.01 27,ooo.Q' 27,(10(1.01 
00. ~ Benef1ts ~2t1·290 1000.00 100000 , COO.!!!!! 

TOTAL UNALLOCATED BEHEFlTS 201~05423 l2OO6N.ooi 1 ell360~ 116955169 '" eDS.5C 
TPAF Pension (On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted) 782,957,00 (182,857.00) 
TPAF Penaion PRM (On-Behalf - Nan-Budgeted) 355,148.00 (355,IMUIO) 
TPAF Pen5ion LTDI IOn-Behalf . Non-Budget8d) 7015.00 (105.00) 
TPAF Social s.any (Reimblned· Nc&8udgNd) 315~.lg Q:15 i!!.10) 

00 TOTAL 0H-8EHALF COHTRJ8UT1OHS 1,"St.01(~. IO (1,"St.OI8 '0) 
0 

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES. EMPLOYEE BENEFTTS il:012 054.23 ~694.001 181136023 3223570.70 ,,4,2210.58) 

TOTAL UNDIsnuauTED EXPENOmJRES 8707675116 2256-4.18 6730<140.12 80231Sot·a5 11J82 71041 13) 
TOTAL GEHEJW. CURR£HT ElPfHSE 10732,71521 335.555.79 11 068271 .00 12.018 8J601 H 0'20 565 on 

CAprrAL OUT1.AY 
FacUlties Ac:q~n and Conatrudton Senrlc:es 

CGnstruction Semc.. QCIO....401J...C50 eO,t,3n.oo 804,3nOO 712.289."3 D2.107.51 
Aases~ for o.DI Setvic:e on SOl. Fundng ..... ~ 8576.00 e 576.00 857600 

Totll FadItUn Ac:q __ and COftltrudlon Sen~ 812953.00 e12 953 00 720845.43 921a757 
TOTAL CAPITAL 0IIlt.A Y 812953.00 812953.!!Q 72084543 92107.57 

TOTAL EXPENDrJURES 1154566821 335 555.79 1188122".00 128096111.50 J928 <157.501 

Exc:eu lDefk:leney) of Rnenun 
O_(UnderJ~ ---.l1Ml1.70421) 1335.555.781 11.237.260.00) 132".OSICI.<I81 913.1eg.Sl 

Other Flnandng $OUICH IU_I: 
OpetaiJng Ttansfer Out: 
TtanslerlO food Servk:e Fund 15000.00, 2J:17.00 12783 00) (2782.50) 0.50 

Total 0Iher Anllndng Soun:a (UaM' ----.l5,ooo.001 2,217.00 (2.783.00) (2.782,501 0.50 

~cau tOefldenc:y) of ~ and Ottw FWndnQ 5ouft;n 
O"rlUnder)Ea~.nclOtMrRn8ndng IU_I (D08.70UlJ C3l3,llII.781 11,2ClJ,043.00) (326.en.M, 913,170.02. 

Fund Balanc:e, Jujy i 3065~.2" 3065~·a" 3065J!!!~" 

Fundllallnc:., JUM 30 S ~~,504.03 $ (333,338.79) S U25,165.2" • 2,735,335.26 • 913,170.02 

dzivkovi
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BOARD OF EOUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOO 

Budgetary Comparllon Schedule 
Special Revenue Fund 

For the Fllcal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Original Budgel Final 

~ T[insflrs ~ 
REVENUES: 

Slal.SOu .... S S $ 
Fed.ral Source. 164,962.00 47,299.00 212,261 .00 

~ocal Sources 

Tolal Revenues S 164,962.00 S 47,299.00 S 212,261.00 

EXPENDITURES: 
InslrUctlon 

P."'onal Service. - SalarieS S 42,626.00 S (491.00) S 42,135.00 
Other Purchesed Services (400-500 seri.s) 117,780.00 34,434.00 152,214.00 
General Supplies 4,556.00 !2,154.oo) 2,402.00 

Tolallnstructlon 164,962.00 31,789.00 196,751.00 

Support Sorvlcea 
P8I1Ionai Services - Employee Benefilll 3,223.00 3,223.00 
Purchased Prof •• slonal and Technical Services 12~87.oo 12,287.00 

Tolal Support S.rvlces 15,510.00 15,510.00 

Totll Expenditures 164,962.00 47,299.00 212,261 .00 

Total OUtflows $ 164,962.00 $ 47,299.00 S 212,261.00 
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Exhibit C-2 

Variance 

6£Il!II EIDilI12 AgUl1 

S $ 
202,061.10 10,199.90 

$ 202,061.10 $ 10,199.90 

S 38,273.24 $ 3,861 .76 
150,506.00 1,708.00 

1,226.86 1,175.14 

190,006.10 6,744.90 

3,223.00 
12,055.00 232.00 

12,055.00 3,455.00 

202,061.10 10,199.90 

S 202,061.1 0 $ 10,199.90 



NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION -

PART II 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Required Supplementary Infonnatlon 
Budgetary Comparl.on Schedule 

Note to RSI 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Not. A - Explanation of Difference. between Budgetary Inflow. and Outflows and 
GAAP Revenues and Expenditure. 

Sources/Inflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" 

from the budgetary comparison schedule 
Difference - budget to GAAP: 

The last State aid payment is recognized as revenue for budgetary 
purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this 
revenue until the subsequent year when the State recognizes 
the related expense In accordance with GASB 33. 

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that 
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related 
revenue Is recognized. 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures 

[C-1&C-2) 

and changes In fund balances - governmental funds. [B-2) 

Uses/outflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the 

budgetary comparison schedule [C-1 &C-2) 
Differences - budget to GAAP 

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but 
not received are reported in the year the order Is placed for 
budgetary purposes, but In the year the supplies are received 
for financia' reporting purposes. 

Transfers to and from other funds are presented as outflows of 
budgetary resources but are not expenditures 
for financial reporting purposes. 

Net transfers (outflows) to general fund 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 

84 

$ 

[B-21 

General 
Fund 

$ 12,485,591.02 

(4,608.00) 

$ 12,480,983.02 

$ 12,809,681 .50 

$ 12,809,681 .50 

Exhibit C-3 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

$ 202,061 .10 

(3,343.69) 

$ 198,717.41 

$ 202,061.10 

(3,343.69) 

$ 198?17.41 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
PART III 
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Section L 

SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS 
(GASB68) 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Schedule at the District', Proportlonat' Share of the Net Pension liability. PERS 

2023 2022 
Flleel VII' Ending Jun. 30. 

2021 

Dlslrtc:fs proportion of Ihe nel pension .abillty 

Olslrid's proportlonale share of th' net pension Ilabaity 

Distrid" covered employee paynJl 

Distrid', proportlonale share of the net pension lIabinty as a 
p8fQntaga of ill covered amployee payroll 

Plan flduc:lary net position a. a pen:;entage of the total pension 
nab.~ 

DIslt1ct'1 proportion of the nat pension IlsbURy 

OI&11ic:t's proportional' share or the net pensJon Habftlty 

0,...... • ....,....-_ 
ots&rict'a proportionate share of tM net pension IabIIty as a 
percentage of lis covered employee payroll 

Plan rtduc:lary net posilion .1 a percentage of the lolal penslon 

"-

$ 

$ 

0.011.878707% 0.011a«92.'% 

2,674,1.8.00 $ 3,537,744.00 

8215,966.00 $ 7.8,803.00 

323.37% .72 .• 5% 

.B.l~ 40.1.'" 

Note: This sdwldule does not contain ten yeanl of loformaUon at GASB No. 68 wu lrn9Iementad during nscaI 
year ended June 30, 2015. 
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0.0110382098% 

$ 2 •• 77,857.00 $ 

$ 815,.28.00 $ 

303.87% 

.7.112% 

Exhibit L·1 

2020 201' 

0.0110752545% 

$ 2.100,86'.00 

$ 7.1,220.00 

53.60% 

0.01,.928017% 0.0126037922% 

2,151.787.00 $ 2,.08,835.00 

801.002.00 $ 791, •• 2.00 

288.63'% 304.3G% 

52.08% .8.72% 



Contradually required contribution 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Schedul. of District Contributions. PEAS 

Contributions In relation to the eontrKtually required contribution 

Contribution deficiency/(excell) 

Distrid'. covered employee payroll 

ContrtbutIons as a perc.ntaga of covered employee payrolJ 

Fiscal Year Ending June 301 
2011 2017 

Contractuany required contrlbuUon S 106,787.64 S 106,117.00 

Contributions In reI.atIon to tne c:ontracWely requited contributlon 11061787.&4) 11061117.00) 

Contribution d.flclenC)f/{exce,.) $ S 

Districts cov.red employee payroll $ 828,966.00 S 748,603.00 

Contributions ... pefClnt8ge of coverH employee peyroI 12.91% 14.17% 

Note: This tche<Ma does not contain ten year. oIlnformaUon at GASB No. 68 was Implemented durina fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2015, 

88 

201. 

S !U.8119.00 S 

194111199.00) 

S S 

$ 815,428.00 $ 

11,84% 

Exhibit L·2 

S 110,~2 .00 

[1101342,00) 

$ 

S 791.442.00 

13.94% 

2015 2014 

114.745.00 S 94,567,00 

(941745.00) (941567.00) 

$ 

801,002.00 $ 791,442.00 

11 ,83~ 1195% 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Schedul4 of the DI.trlcr. Proportionate Shaft; of the Net PantlOR LlIbUfty· TPAF 

Flsc:., YHr Endfng JUIM 30. 
2023 2022 2021 

Di5tr1d's proportiOn of !he Slate's nel pension DabDIty 

DIstrict's cover.d employee payroD 

Dlslrld's propGl1lonala share of Ihe nel pen.lon labUlty 81 a 
percenlage of III covered emplOyee payroU 

Plan ftduclary ntl polillan as a percenlage of Ihe lotal pension 
Mablllty 

OIstncts proportlOn 01 the State's nat penllon Hablllty 

Olstrfd's prupMlonale share of the Slale's net pension liability 

Dlstrfcl'. covered employ .. payroll 

Oistrtd's proportionate .hare of the net pension Dlbility as a 
percentage of ItS covered employee payroll 

Plan fldudary net poslUon a. a percentage of the total pension 
Mability 

S 

S 

0.0375142558% 0.0388398385% 

25,293.484.00 S 30,398,558.00 

4,333,1 HI 00 S 4.067,348.00 

583.72% 747.33% 

25.41% 22.33"'-

Nole: Thl. sChedule does not contain ten years 0' Informallon al GASB No. 68 was Implemented during fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2015. 
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0.0386183621% 

S 24.408,4&4.00 

S 4,037.728.00 

604.51% 

28.71% 

$ 

S 

2020 

0.040785V288% 

2t,108,151.51 

3,63S,7S4.00 

598-'10% 

33 .. " 

Exhibit L·3 

20t. 

0.0383946685% 

S 24,425,883 00 

S 4.378,498.00 

557.86% 

0,0364909570% 

S 18,442,242.6& 

$ 3,811,045.00 

483.15% 

3378% 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2019 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

A. Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

B. Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 5.00% as of June 30, 2017 to 5.66% as of June 30, 2018 in accordance with 
Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67. 

TEACHERS' PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND 

A. Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

B. Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 4.25% as of June 30, 2017 to 4.86% as of June 30,2018 in accordance with 
Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67. 

90 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Schedule 0' Chong" In tho TobIl OPEB LIalllIIty Ind RoIItad Rollol 

FIIcII V • ., Ending Juno 30, 
2021 2020 2019 

Total OPEB nability 

5er<1ce cosl S S S 837,707.00 

Interesl 717,158.00 

Changes of benaflllanns 

Olll ..... nee. between axpected and actual experlem:e (1 ,382,278.00) 

Changes of assumptions or other Inputs (1,972,715.00) 

Member eo<*Ibutlono 15,887.00 

Gross benefit payments 1459,872.00) 

Net change In total OPEB HabHlty (2,423,911.00) 

TolsI OPEB Hablllty· beginning 19,814,574.00 

To'.' OPEB liability· andlng S S S 17,190,683.00 

Covered • employee payroll $ S $ 5,119,718.00 

Total OPEB Uablilly as a pen:enlage of 
covered • employee payroll 335.71% 

Nola: This &Chedule does nol contain len yea .. of InformaUon .s GASB No. 75 waslmplemanled during flseel 
year ended June 30, 2018. 
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201. 

$ 768,831.00 

620,187.00 

(2,545,508.00) 

18,729.00 

1454,315.00) 

(1,594,094.00) 

21~,888.00 

$ 19,814,574.00 

$ 5,180,082.00 

380.12% 

EKhIbltM·1 

2017 

S 

S 21.208,668.00 

S 4,818,149.00 

«0.37% 



LOCAL EDUCATION 

A.BenefltChanges 

There were none. 

B. Changes of Assumptions 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

The discount rate changed from 3.58% as of June 30. 2017 to 3.87% as of June 30. 2018 In accordance wnh 
Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67. 
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OTHERSUPPLEMENTARYINFO~TION 

93 



Section D 

SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES 
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Section E 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
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ExhlbltE·1 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Sehodule of Program Reven""" and expenditures. Budgetary BasIs 
For the Flecal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Stala Federal Local 

!2l!.! A!!I !Ill !Ill 
REVENUES 

State Sources S $ S S 
Fade",1 Sou"",. 202.061.10 202.061.10 
Local Source. 

Total R.ven ..... S 202.061.10 $ S 202.061.10 S 

EXPENDITURES: 

Instructton: 
P8BOnai Service •• Salaries 100-100 $ 38.273.24 $ $ 38.273.24 $ 
Other Pun:h.sod Service. (400-500 series) 100-S00 150.506.00 150,506.00 
Gene",1 Supplle. 100-610 1,226.86 1,226.86 

Totallnltruction 190,006.10 190,006.10 

Support ServI ... : 
Pun:h.sod Profe.slonal and Technical Services 200-300 12,OSS.00 12,055.00 

Total Support Service. 12.055.00 12,055.00 

Total expenditures S 202,061.10 S $ 202,061.10 $ 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 
Special Revenue Fund 

Exhibit E-1b 

Combining Schedule of Federal Program Revenues and expenditures - Budgetary Basis 
Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2019 

E.S.E.A. I.D.E.A. Part B 

Total TIUel ~ Preschool 

REVENUES 
Federal Sources $ 202,061 .10 $ 51,555.10 $ 142,224.00 $ 8,282.00 

Total Federal Revenues $ 202,061.10 $ 51,555.10 $ 142,224.00 U 282.oo 

EXPENDITURES: 
Instruction: 

Personal Services - Salaries 100-100 $ 38,273.24 $ 38,273.24 $ $ 
Olher Purchased Services (400-500 series) 100-500 150,506.00 142,224.00 8,282.00 
General SuppUes 1()().610 1,226.86 1,226.86 

TotailnstrucUon 190,006.10 39,500.10 142,224.00 -..!.282.oo 

Support Services: 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 200-300 12,055.00 12.055.00 

Total Support Services 12,055.00 12,055.00 

Total expenditures $ 202,061.10 $ 51,555.10 $ .142,224.00 $ 8,282.00 



SecdonF 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
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SChool AddItIon 
Windows and Root Replacement 

Totals 

BOARD OF EDUCAT10N 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Capital Projects Fund 
SUm"""Y SCheduIo 01 Projoct EJtpondltu_ 

For the Ve.r Ended June 3D, 2019 

Revised GAAP Exe!;odltures to Cate 
Approval GAAP 

Il!II ApproRrI,t!on. PrlorY"CI CUrr!otYgr 

Q/l/94 $ 2,850,000,00 $ 2,799,238.70 $ 
8/13114 589,839.00 346,371 .76 

$ 3,439,839.00 $ 311441810.48 $ 

99 

Exhlb~F·l 

Unexpended 
~ 

lIQMl 

$ 51 ,781 ,30 
243,46624 

$ 295,227.54 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Exhibit F·2 

Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance· Budgetary Basis 
For the Vear Ended June 30,2019 

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
State Sources· SOA Grant 
Bond Proceeds 
Lease Purchase Agreement 
Transfer from capital reserve 
Transfer from capital outlay 
Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
Equipment (73X) 
Salaries (100) 
Legal Services (331) 
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services (390) 
Construction Services (450) 
General Supplies (610) 
Land and Improvements (710) 
Lease Purchase Agreements· Principal (721) 
Buildings other than Lease Purchase Agreements· Principal (722) 
Other Objects (600) 
Transfer to Fund 40 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (derlClency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Fund Balance· July 1 

Fund Balance· June 30 

100 

$ 

295,227.54 

$ 295,227.54 



BOARD OF EOUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

exhibit F·2a 

Schodule of Project Rovonu .. , expenditures, Project Balance and Project StatUI· Budgetary B •• I. 
School Addition 

From Inclpt/on and for the VOIr Ended Juno 30, 2019 

REVENUES AND OlllER FINANCING SOURCES 
State Sourcaa· SCC Grant 
Bond Proceeds 
Contribution from privale sources 
Tranafer from capital reserve 
Transfer from capRaI oulley 
Total Revenuea 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

Prior Period. Cunnt Year 

$ $ 
2,850,000.00 

2,850,000.00 

Equipment (73X) 132,588.35 
Salaries (100) 
legal Services (331) 
Other Purchased Professlonat and Tachnlcat Services (390) 286,925.65 
Construction Services (450) 2,328,724.70 
Ganeral Supplies (610) 
Land and Improvements (710) 
Lea .. Purchase Agreements· Principal (721) 
Building. olher than Lease Purcha.e Agreements· Principal (722) 
Other Objecta (800) 
Trana"" to Fund 40 50,000.00 
Total Expendllure. 2.798,238.70 

Excess (deliclency) of revenue. over (under) expenditure. 

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION 
Prcjec\ Number 
GranlOete 
Bond Aulhortzallon Date 
Bonda Authorized 
Bonds Issued 
Original Aulhorized Cost 
Additional Au4horized Cost 
Revised Aulhorized Cost 

Percentage Increa .. over Origlnat Aulhorized Cost 
Percanlege Completed 
Original Target Complellon Date 
Revfsed Target Completion Date 

51,761.30 

NIA 
NlA 

11130193 
$ 2,850,000.00 
$ 2,850,000.00 
$ 2,850,000.00 
$ 
$ 2,850,000.00 

0.00% 
98.18% 

9/1/95 
9/1/95 
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$ $ 

Re_ 
Authorized 

Co.t 

2,850,000.00 2,850,000.00 

2,850,000.00 2,850.000.00 

132,586.35 70,000.00 

286,925.65 300,000.00 
2,328,724.70 2,480,000.00 

50,000.00 
2,798,238.70 2,850.000.00 

51.761.30 



BOARD OF EOUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

exhibit F-2b 

Schodule of Project Revenuos, Exp.ndltu .... , Projact Bllance and Project Statu. - Budgetary sa ... 
Windows Ind Roof Replacamont 

From Inception and forth. V •• r Ended June 30, 2019 

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Stat. Sources - SoA Gran! 
Bond Proceed. 
Con\TIHJtIon from privata source. 
Transfer from capital roserv. 
Transfer from capIt.1 outlay 
Total R.venues 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
Equipment (73X) 
Salaries (100) 
Leg.1 Servloo. (331) 
OIlIer Purt:llased Prol .. slonaland Technical Services (390) 
Construction Servloo. (450) 
General SuppIIea (610) 
L.nd and Improvements (710) 
Leese Purt:IIese Agreement. - Princlp.1 (721) 
Buildings other than L .... Purch ... Agreements - Principal (722) 
Other Objects (BOO) 
Tran."r to Fund 40 
Total expenditure. 

Exces. (d.fldency) 01 revenue. ovar (under) expenditures 

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION 
Project Number 
Grant Date 
Bond AuChorizaUon Data 
Bond. Authorized 
Bond. Issued 
Original Aulhorlzod Cost 
AddlHonai Authorized Cost 
Revised Aulhorlzod Cost 

Percentaga lnae ... over OrigInal Authorized Cost 
Percentage Completed 
OrigInal Target CompleUon Oat. 

Pr!Ior Parlod! 

$ 235.935.00 

353,903.00 

589,638.00 

18.967.53 
327.404.23 

346,371.76 

243,466.24 

CUrrtnt'YHr 

$ 

374D-02D-14-G3CY 
6/13/14 

N/A 
NJA 
N/A 

$ 569.838.00 
$ 
$ 589.838.00 

0.00% 
58.72% 

9/1/15 
9/1/15 
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$ 

Il!!!Il 

235,935.00 

353,903.00 

589,838.00 

18,967.53 
327,404.23 

346.371.76 

243,466.24 

$ 

Revised 
Authorized 
~ 

235,935.00 

353,903.00 

569,838.00 

20,000.00 
569,838.00 

589,838.00 



Section G 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
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ENTERPRISE FUND 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 
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Section H 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
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Schools 

Elementary School $ 

$ 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Student Activity Agency Fund 
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 

ExhlbltH·3 

Balance 
June 30. 2018 

Cash 
Receipts 

Cash 
Disbursements 

Balance 
June 30, 2019 

53.834.62 $ 68,797.13 $ 66,320.01 =-$ __ ~56:;J.,3::..;1,",1:..:..7...;.4 

53,834.62 $ 68,797.13 $ 66,320.01 :,$ _.....::5::::6L:::.,3.!-"11~. 7.;:.4 
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Payroll Oeducllons and Withholdlngs 
Net Salaries and Wages 
Flexible Spending 
Interfunds Payable 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Payroll Agency Fund 
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Balance Cash 
June 30, 2018 Receipts 

$ 9,181.35 $ 3,148,674.28 
9,779.19 3,777,014.17 
7,528.78 15,006.00 

50,000.00 2,182.58 

S 76,489.30 S 6,942,877.03 
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Exhibit H-4 

Cash Balance 
Disbursements June 30, 2019 

$ 3,024,942.50 $ 132,913.13 
3,774,284.85 12,508.51 

15,484.58 7,050.18 
2,441.70 49,740.88 

$ 6,817,153.63 $ 202,212.70 



Section I 

LONG- TERM DEBT 
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Data of 

fl!m!!u lIIlII 

Refunding School Bonds 3115115 $ 

--o 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGHOF~ 

Long - TeRn Debt 
Schedul. of Serial Bonda 

For the FlacIII VHr Ended Jun. 30, 2019 

Amount of 
lIIlII 

3,510,000.00 

Annual Maturttiea 
01 Bo_ Outstanding 

Jun. 30. 2019 

2m AID!!!!!!! 

3115120 $ 350,000.00 
3115121 355,000.00 
3115122 350,000.00 
3115123 345,000.00 
3115124 350,000.00 
3115/25 360,000.00 
3115126 355,000.00 

In_ 
!!IIa 

3.00% 
3.00% 
3.00% 
3.00% 
3.00% 
3.00% 
3.00% 

$ 

aalanc. 
Jyu 39. 2018 

RotIncI 
Current 
Im 

~1I>II1-1 

Balance 
J un, 3D. 2D1' 

2,810,000.00 $ 345,000.00 $ 2.485,000.00 

$ 2,810.000.00 S 345.000.00 S 2,485,000,00 



Exhibit 1-3 
BOARD OF EDUCAlION 

BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 
Budgetary C_n.an Schedule 

Dobt Service Fund 
For the FI.c.1 V .. r Ended June 30, 2019 

Variance 
OrigInal Budget Rnal Final to 

!!YWl I!ilni{ers ~ &IYiI &I!IJ! 
REVENUES: 

Local Sources: 
local Tax levy $ 425.625.00 $ $ 425.625.00 i 425.625.00 $ 

425.625.00 425.625.00 425.625.00 

Total Ravenues 425.625.00 425.825.00 ~625.00 

EXPENDITURES: 
Regular Debt Service: 

Inlerest 80.850.00 80.850.00 80.850.00 

~ 
Redemption of PJindpal 345.000.00 345.000.00 345.000.00 

~ Total Regular Debt Service 425.8S1l.00 _ 425.850.00 ~5.850.00 ... 
Total Expendl ..... 425.850.00 425.850.00 425.850.00 

Excess (Oefidency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expendltwes (225.00) (225.00) (225.00) 

Other Financing Sourc .. : 
Operating Transfers In: 

Inleresl Eamed in Capital Projects Fund 4.507.60 4.507.60 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Olher 
Finandng Sources Over (Under) Expenditures (225.00) (225.00) 4.282.60 4.507.60 

Fund Balance. July 1 2.400.95 2.400.95 2.400.95 

Fund Balance. June 30 $ 2.175.95 $ L..l.175.95 $ 6.663.55 $ 4.507.60 

Recapitulation of Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expendilures: 
Budgeted Fund Balance $ (225.00) $ $ (225.00) S 4.282.60 S 4.507.60 



STATISTICAL SECTION 
(UNAUDITED) 

GASS requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. Pursuant to State of New Jersey Department 
of Education requirements issued for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, only two years statistical data 
needed to be presented. Additional year's data win be included each year thereafter until ten years of data 
is presented. 
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Financial Trends 
J-1 
J-2 
J-3 
J-4 
J-5 

Revenue Capacity 

STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited) 

Net Position by Component 
Changes in Net Position 
Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds 
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 
General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source 

J-6 Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
J-7 Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
J-8 Principal Property Taxpayers 
J-9 Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Debt Capeclty 
J-10 
J-11 
J-12 
J-13 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt as of June 30 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Demographic and Economic Information 
J-14 Demographic and Economic Statistics 
J-15 Principal Employers 

Operating Information 
J-16 FUll-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program 
J-17 Operating Statistics 
J-18 School Building Information 
J-19 Schedule of Required Maintenance for School Facilities 
J-20 Insurance Schedule 
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~ 

~ 

.". 

Gcw8lmlenUl Kti'tIIies 
Nel nvestmenl: in capital U&8tS -----Total govenmnal acIMIies net position 

~at:tN .. 
Nee 1nv....,.1n CIIpIr&I UUIs R_ .......... 

Total ~ adNiI*; net poIition 

""""'-HeI ~ In capital uuts 
R_ .......... 

Total cIisttId net pos/Iion ---

"". 211'. 2017 

s 
1~1 .42 5.827.18 
~ S 5.827.18 

BOARD OF EDUCAllON 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NIl PoeMicMI br c ; .... 
lMtT ...... V ... 

laa:tU/IJbuIs d ~ ...-
ZlUI 

s 

"3:n5 

~ ,..,. ... 

AIcaI V .... Ending.I&IrW 30, 
2014 2013 -2012 21111 

.......... 

20'. 

• 042,303.00 
501,415.00 
172,30S.oo 

S 1$21.113.00 



........... -, 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF HORWOOD 

CNngea In .... PoIiIion 
LMt Ten AIcaI V .. ( __ a/~ 

,"'. 201. 20'7 3". 20" 
AIcaI Year Endna June ~ 

"''' 21113 20" 20" 211'. -Govemrnllltal aalYidM --"_ I 5,.378,150.<$3 $ 5,823,151.60 $ ".415,0&1.$4 '4,588.551.22 • 4,592,438.32 S 4,76111,811.85 S 4,421,983.5D $ 4,376,709.53 $ 4,081,ea4.oo I 4,218.404.00 -- 1,725.748.71 1,640,7Ut.as t.381,5A2.31 1.13'7.tiIiO.DB ,=....., ,,317 ....... 1,218.,338.24 ' ........... 1,028.$18.65 1,76&,87..00 

""""--. ... .333.1JT ":!f..-.OS ". ...... ' 285.588.18 2Il,fIO:U2 al.667.34 3'1,853..51 31',165.74 287,31ue 304,341.00 
SUpport SelVa.: 

T_ 1,175,755.21 1,431,657 .as 1.164.478..23 1,283.73a.OII 644,871.011 783,389.07 "'_70 473,791.1l1li 617,2l(t.24 
StudenI .nd InSWction NII!8d MtVic:M 2,072,861.55 2.093,04Q.OO 1,721,1JnJid 1,seo.4OI.31 1.328JI6Q.35 1.345,749.18 1,407.815.11 1,357,671.11 l,442,lS8..1JT 1.385.107.00 
Scnoat ...... iI2I •• urtices 0),384.01 431,118&.83 320,741.67 353.78t.54 558,I58.n ~7.7'iI2.72 347.954.64 306,828.39 207.033.53 851,1&8.00 
~.1nfonnaIIon IechnoIOgy 1137,255.88 1,035,_.88 735.72027 822.420.12 474,17&05 .....,..., 570 ....... .......... .......... 403,915.00 
Plan!: operaIionI and maintenance 1,177,338.57 1,188,057.38 988.018..20 1iI5O.7SB.19 '119.1161.72 104,217.88 865,OIIO.DII 827,34Ul 

_.38 
D72,473.00 

...... - 168.157.23 137,178.51 131,0&1.42 170,74&..32 123.017 .. 110.284.10 197.534-4' 184,182.03 175,017.30 2'8,532..00 
SOA Debt s.Mca A&seANnI • .578.00 ......... 8,570.00 8,578.00 •• 571.00 ......... 8,578.00 ..,"00 1(l,74a.OQ --CIW1e'_ 
IntetMt on Iong-lelm deCIl 781rr:f7.50 85 11.87 ~3i5,S3 'S874.B2 145848.CJ1 

TOCIiI ~ adIvIIaa upenses 14,108.971.94 14,118,eoe..44 11;dA11J17 :n 11,07'3,121.85 10.541214,15 

~t)'P8 adMIiM: 
F .......... 15.581.21 8,620.78 12.323.71 8.834.35 8,565..01 8,i06.68 2,376.10 41495.52 

ToQI~AdW"'upenM 15.581.28 8,820.78 12.323.79 U34.35 8.5!1!i.Ol ',i08.06 2,378.10 4,485..52 
TcMi dIItrict .. uperoea '4,124.56022 ''','21,227.20 It,2'7B.221.18 1',079,1!i8.2O 10,548,71V.71 lD.~ 10.154,173.0S 8,780.581.23 ... --... 

VI 
GowenWNntaJ adlYlt\eI.; 

Ct\ItgelIOr MMces: 

...... ---k1WMt on q..tenn debt 78,837.50 85._.17 """".83 102.174.82 '45.B40.01 111.5fi.B2 ' ... ....., 208.103.58 222,770.34 
()petatWIg grantS and ~ 3,,112,,0IiI04..82 3.831.140.65 1,421,788.18 1,487,735.48 1.322.841.30 1,512.510.115 1,432.e38.23 1,.258,061.85 1._,486.52 1,511.8811.00 
c.pitaI gt8ntIlNf CCInIJIJutIona 

Total gov~~ptOgfMIf8V'" 3,no~ ~7,518.32 1,514.1S3.fi_ -----.M8O.810.30 ~,6B7.3L 1 ••• 110.57 , ,825,3251.08 1,.aa.165.44 ,.=", ',58',889.00 



_.I-. _. 
IIOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

a-.. ....... Po&ItIon 
..... T_RealV ... 

(lIXIWIbaIir 01 ~ .-
20'. 20 •• 20.7 20 •• 20" 

FiIcaI VMI Endin:I J...- 301 
20 •• 20'3 2O'-2--~11 20 •• 

Busineu-rn- adiYk*: 
ChargeS for ...... a. 

Food service $ ,,7IXI.02 $ 10,508.01 $ ',202.00 $ 7,440.24 $ ....... $ 8,852.44 $ 2._.11 $ 5.397.40 $ 7,054.10 $ 7-.00 
()pe'*'G p* end ~ 

TotaI~ ..... pJogqm""" ' .103.02 10.508.1)1 '2!2.00 7.44024 .... a:UU U52.44 ;iSU, U!1.40 
TotIllMId.....-se prggqm IMI ........ 3.7W.1l35.34 " .028.024.33 1.523 ..... $.98 1,518.050..54 1,en,181 .O' 1,695,113.01 1.621,2a5.S7 1,471,562.84 "'1_-GcwINm\lllll'Uf ~ (10,318,048.62) (10,101,OIKt.12) (9,751,713.38) (8,482.513.55) (11.072.527.3111 (11,054.925.83) (1.52I,W.BII) (8,31U20.27) (8,283,688.47) (8.588,8304JXlI --- 18 11'7L261 ',887'" p .081 ,1111 ...... l!!£l i~054ag} !IOG.7t 00 .... ~.m.!!l 'a4•OO 
TotaJ diIIIkt-wide nM UJ*'U (10,324.924_ no _9,202.87) (!.T54.71S.1?) 111.481.001.681 ID.D?'2.588.75) IIU)5U7UI5) 18,2:1177.18) l!Ut!U18..311 fU?3.5TB.4ill f8.58!211U!O) 

GenenII ....... u. and OttwC~ in Net PMttIon 
GcNemmontaI adiv"-: 

Tax.: 
Propeny .... II'ritd !Of general JIU'POMS 9.(103,530.00 Q.567.750.00 '.380.147.00 1I.1(NI,223.00 8,015,!I05.OO ',83t,1ZJ.OO 8 ,665.807.00 8,.520,»9.00 1,353,33Z.00 8,243,490.00 
Property laX_, _ltd tor debt service principal 348,787.50 341,717.33 336,353.17 327.483.18 293,900.83 255,24Z.M 24D,Q28.17 2~.798.41 244,8'1. 

FedI'" and sw. aid not restrk.1ed 41,375.611 29,608..31 31,281t.17 24,6a5.oo 23, ... .00 12,287.64 7,844.87 21,324.00 252,5BB.1lO W,785.00 
Tuilion (othIrlhan IpedaI ac:hooII) I1U23.74 21,227.85 2 ........ '.BB3.1lO 23,002.00 17 .... 00 li,109.00 ... _- 35,11U7 37J197.54 11.727.82 .11.338.6' 'CI,2!I2.07 7.41U3 8.sea.1I 3,544.40 128,_.48 20,243.00 -- 371.112.81 3711.01727 381.081.78 .......... 423.111.17 471,337.70 --'" _ ... ... _ .. ....oeuo 
5pMMI iIem - proceedIlrom .... of .... 
AdiuItIfIent 10 CapMaJ AIMCs ......... (540,740.00) - ~-~ - N.J. SchOOl O.nlopNnt AuhIfIty granD 235,935.00 

en 
_ .............. I ...... ..., T_ 

1~782.501 "1657.501 131207751 
TOIaI gov.mrMntII actw .... '0,7'4,927.21 m~5.660.10_ ----.!0,174,264~ _ i,i42.2I7.'7 i..!M,65OlI7 _i,852.2~ i,232.128.34 i.I.92,8'U8 8.686.822.80 8.630.1&4.00 ---... _---TratWt.,. ~7B250 1.657.50 3.207.75 1'·3,n.001 
Total buIirItU-type acIIvIIMIs 2.7B250 1.657.50 3.aJ7.75 (1.391 .001 
Totti di.aricI·VIidt genenll'8I/enutS 10,717.708.71 10,377,318.30 10,177."na 9.V42.21S7.17 8.7'4.650.07 8,852.241.85 9.232.128.34 i,lQ2.811.6IJ 8.685.231 .10 8.630.164.00 

en.,. ....... Poe*on 
Gov.rnmentaI activIIIts 3 ......... 274,571U8 42:2,551.13 .... 773.62 642.122.6IJ 117.321..32 705.1580.45 782.U1.<42 432,921.13 41,331l.oo __ actiYlties 

,4,095.761 31544.75 ...... ...... [!'~ 1~054..221 .... 71 9OU8 :S'~.i51 1.82".00 
TOIaI diArtct .... changt In M1 ~ • 382.7&4.83 • 218.115.43 _ • <l22.iiLOii I .)79.51 • &42,051 i 795.217.10 S 106.25118 • 7B3.7B330 SI,155.18 • 42,fiI5otOO ---



~ 

~ 

-..I 

General Fund 
Restricted -­"""'-
Reserved 
Unreserved 

ToW general fund 

All Other Govemmantaf Funda 
Restricted, r.poned In: 
"-_ ..... 
Debt ANice kJnd 

Assigned, repottad in: 
Cap'" projects fund ......., .. 

lJnfaaeIyed. tepOft8d In: 
Special reveme fund 
capital projecla fund 
Debe MIVice fund 

Total aD 0"" govemmenlallunds 

Total Fund BalanCes 

Source: DiatrM;t ~ 

201. 201. 

$ 2.002,608.76 S 2,693,2.55.03 
371 .144.68 68,327.21 
318.D96.B2 264,649.00 

S 2.692.750.26 S 3.024.231.24 

S 295,227.54 S 295,227.54 
8.663.55 2,400.R5 

• 301.911,09 • 297,628.49 

S 2.994.681.35 $3.321,859-'.~ 

BOARD OF EDUCAnON 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Fund BaIancM:. Go~ F ...... 
l.aIt Ten FIscal Yun I_,.,.",.,....,d_ --

2017 2016 2015 

$ 2,1W3,262..68 $ 2,948.786.61 I 2,899,343.20 
429,586.60 205,847.13 73,7S1.68 
210,D38.oo 210,835.00 210,83S.00 

S 3.532.889028 S 30363.468.74 S 3.183.935.86 

S 295,227.54 S 285,227.54 S 333,833.38 
491.03 881zr 1,322.94 

76,500.00 

• 295.718.57 • 296.094.81 i 413,658.32 

S 3.828,607.85 __ $ 3,6S8.563.!5!5 ~3.597.592-,-1.8 

_ ... 

rascal Y8111 Enc!inq June 30, 
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

I 2,538,54&.03 S 2,223.712.76 $ 1,736,357.14 $ Q37,B7S.&3 S 
215,887.25 348,071.10 82,7&4.82 ""= 212,00!5.00 212.035.00 "',843.00 270278.80 

250.801.00 .... 
S 2.967.47.:28 ..!.!.781.81B.8B $ 2.076.064.96 $ 1.240.378.75 

S 287 • ......, S 188,832.85 S 238_" S 375,904.00 S 
1,304'" 118,158.$5 85,484.22 115.01 ....... 

326.I100.00 

181.053.00 

• 289.090.66 • 254.98920 • 304.316Jir $ .. iiO.9fB.44 • 507,949.00 

$ 3256,582.14 S 3,038.8OB.o& S 2.3BO.381 .83 S 1.731.295.19 S 843,188.00 



...-.... _, 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
-. ""NORWOOD 

CIIMgM in Fund a.&aw:. • GovemmIrKat fundi, 
L-.I T .. RKaI V .... 

(mocIIfecI.a:n.lbUr til ~ -
201. 2018 21117 201. 2015 

AseaJ y.., EndirG June 30
1 

2014 2013 2012 2011 ~ -T .. .., S 10.229,155.00 $ 9.Ui5.I34.00 $ 9,108,886.00 $9,8Zt.5lI.oo S 8,455,652.00 SU70,iM.OO S 9.098,520.00 S 8,978,301.00 S 8.820,725.00 $ 8,24J,41M).OO 

T •• "'''''" ..... 111,923.74 21,227.85 " ....... ......'" 23,OCI2.'" 17.694.00 18.809.00 
TransporWIon fees 

....... -- 35.""" 31.1.54 18,727.82 lU,33U1 '0.292.<77 1.~1a.53 8.568 •• 3.544.-40 121.98e.4I 20,2-43.00 -- 31a.112.11 J11I,OI1.28 438,171.72 421,832.78 438,141.115 517,501 .65 31.,066.111 263,8IiIO.00 258.aso.46 .......... 
sw._ 2.155,944.10 2.127.037.60 1201,882.37 1,285,088.64 1,124,260..52 1.237 ....... 1,.2&4.483.54 t.l01,snas -- 198,717 .• ' 221~31 2DO.30S.11D 208a!!!!:44 20111'02.00 1.,115.50 1501'37.50 177~ 

TOUI .evenues 111011.833:00 12.7i2 62 11.ih.656.25 11132.817.47 11,241.337.44 110305.42i52 10.857.451.46 10.545. --.......... -- 3.033,048.85 3,044 ••. 11 2,861,990.51 3,159,371.08 :J,;203,B8U7 3,29G,»51.34 3,013,571 .07 3,0S3,.50B.91 2,882,467." 3,830.807.00 

...... -- 1,013,704..35 851,3QI .OS 
_211 

838,07&'07 &45.170.41 881,712..2e 884.531.17 ... .-,. 776.lI27..23 1.7S7,.5Q2.00 

"""- 205,!iilZi -m:;n:s 221 ....... 206,184.35 212.148.14 2OQ,I8II.1D 230 ....... 220""'" 213.424.34 304,341.00 --T_ 1,775,755.21 1,430,157.88 1,114,47823 1,283.738.09 844,871lB 793.-.07 ........ ,. 413,791.89 817,219.24 
Student and InsUUctian ~ ~ 1,244,728..41 1,245.,771..57 1,2M.391 .45 1,1811,801.98 1.012,781.31 1.000, __ 42 1,082,490..50 1,013,377.115 1,158,OJ2.04 1.393,408.00 ---- -"" ... ... ..,... 219 .... 78 244,1108.87 .... =so .,. ...... ' 188,532.10 173,t08.75 218,511.32 324,158.00 
General.,., ~ ...... iIIi .. uMc:eI 583,872.," 801 ,817..91 .......... 521,lI8IUi5 ........ ,. .......... 468,.821..58 4.5e.445.75 503,530.01 no ...... 
Plant op.atIonS ItId muu.nance 128,741.78 _ .718.77 756,119.33 782,217.50 738,215.22 718,998.99 IlIU.4~ 77I,72i.36 196,251.18 ......... -- 159,957.zJ 137.178.51 131.091 .42 170,741.32 123,067.98 180,aM.l0 197,535.41 184.182.63 175,017.30 218,532.00 _ ....... 

3,223.570.79 3,309,811.65 2.2110.23"'3 2,240.81U19 2.2Il3.1 ..... 2.332,171 .15 2.280,652.17 1.-.0Q8.36 1,714,4OIS.62 

-~ """"'-- CaplW- 720,845.43 801,327.89 475,809.63 425,725.78 322,317.70 562.714.44 37,508.00 13Si1.321.3S 35,521.01) 28,".00 - 0ebI urvice: 

CO - 345,000,00 340,000.00 335,000.00 32:5,000.00 336.DOO.'" 325,000.00 310,000.00 
~ andOlhlrd\WgD ....... 00 87tl§.00 1W~.oo ......... 185.4'8.75 181.1Ml,a 197,717..50 

ToW upendill.nI 13.434248], 132JJ7 .24 1 '.519.404.20 11,470,828..10 10.Il00.307.40 11,32J,iiLi4 10.116.031 .17 
E-=-(Derdlfq)'" rev ..... 

cww ( ..... ) upendIQnI 1324.415.11) 15015.090.82) 172,202.06 81.871.37 341.030.04 (111.,110..92) .... <2S.ZJ .......... 980.897.58 ........... 
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~ 

N 
o 

FiScal Year 
Ended June 30, 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

Source: District recorda 

IQJII 

$ 274,277,00 
271,826,00 
286,874,37 
317,677,47 
508,937,97 
438,754,11 
393,670,08 
559,457,36 
433,666,73 
521,508,92 

!lI!!i!m 

$ 

19,909,00 
17,694,00 
23,902,00 
5,883,00 

154,692.54 
21,227,85 

111,923,74 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

General Fund· 01her Local Revenue by Source 
Lest Ten Flocal Years 

(mocIiIiBd BCCItJBl basis 01 accounlinll) 
Unaudited 

T ransportalloo Summer 
fm l!lIIWl Enrichment !!i!Jlili 

$ $ 9,611,00 $ $ 214,880,00 
11,975,54 259,320,00 
3,075,37 248,880,00 
5,898,85 293,084,62 
6,696.27 329,820,82 
9,691.94 369,017,91 

10,070,70 344,330,00 
16,503,06 344,934.92 
35,821,62 329,884,43 
31,472,37 325,105,90 

Exhibit J-S 

Health_lIS Pre-School 
~ Inclusion Fees MiscaUaneous 

$ $ $ 49,786,00 
530,46 

15,010,00 
1,000,00 

148,516,88 
54,161,26 
39,269,38 
43,126.84 
46,732,83 
53,006.91 



_v_ 
Ended 

December 

"'-' - VacanllJIrd - Fann 

OOl. S 10,724,900 $1 ,280.449,400 $ ".300 
2011 8,542,400 987,650,800 ".300 
2012 7,705,900 986,809,800 ".300 
2013 7,230,100 988,084.400 ".300 
201' 7.059,100 987,504,100 ".300 
201S 6,8.50,100 888,459,100 ".300 
2016 11,878,400 990,623,100 ".300 
2017 8,163,400 996,442, 100 ".300 
2016 8,213,100 999 ........ ".300 
201. 8,991,100 1,000,494,000 ".300 

Source! Uunk:IpeI Tu AueAor 

~ 

IV 
~ 

BOARD OFEDUCAnoN 
BOROUGH OF HORWOOD 

Aueaad V ... and EstlmMed AcWII V ... of TaatM PfOpMty, 
Lut T .... A..:aJ y..,. 

Unaudir.d 

T .... _ 

Comm8fdal .......... -- V_ 

$ 72.587.800 $ 100,927,500 S 17,510.200 S 1,482.244,100 
70,617,600 ... _- 17,529,600 1,18',054,000 
70,643,900 97.495,300 16,soo.ooo 1,179,199,200 
70,843.900 97,495,300 16.",,000 1,179.998,000 
70,643.900 97,495.300 16.500,000 l ,179,246.7OD 
71,289,200 97,395,300 16.500,000 1,180,538,000 
69.189,200 97,173,900 16.soo,000 1,185,408,900 
65,125,900 81,161,600 18,500,000 1,1&4,043,300 
63.S2!5.800 86.999,600 16,500,000 1,184,719.600 
82,810,900 100,799,100 16,500,000 1,209,699,400 

ExhibitJ..8 

T .... 
Estnl8!ed Actual Dir1Id 

Net Valuation (CoIny- School ...-...... T_ V ... ~. 

S 1,864,055 S 1,483.908,155 S 1,507,082.584 • .564 
, ..... 727 1,182.342,727 1,281,719.006 0.585 
1,103,992 1,180,303.192 1,327,0B6,242 • .568 

1,179,9518,000 1,273,704,913 0.572 
1 .179~700 1,22:5.344.833 Q.S66 

1,180,538,000 1,240.810,250 0.587 
1,185,408,900 1.291.038.183 0.620 
1,1&4,043.300 1,296,919,351 0.655 
1,184,719,600 1.274,815.010 •. 654 
1,209.691,400 1,305,7OD,439 0.654 



..... 
IV 
IV 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(rale per $100 of assessed value) 
Unaudited 

School District Direct Rate Overla!!j!i!!!l Rates 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

December 31 , 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

Basic Rate 

1.028 
1.251 
1.291 
1.308 
1.307 
1.315 
1.388 
1.430 
1.435 
1.440 

Source: Municipal Tax Collector 

General 
Obligation Debt 

Service 

0.034 
0.043 
0.043 
0.043 
0.043 
0.042 
0.036 
0.036 
0.036 
0.035 

Tolal 
Direct 

School Tax 
Rate Municipality County 

1.062 0.463 0.200 
1.294 0.615 0.224 
1.334 0.639 0.245 
1.351 0.650 0.248 
1.350 0.662 0.243 
1.357 0.671 0.253 
1.424 0.682 0.268 
1.466 0.690 0.274 
1.471 0.708 0.263 
1.475 0.707 0.262 

Exhibit J-7 

Total Direct and 
OVerlapping Tax 

Rate 

1.725 
2.133 
2.218 
2.249 
2.255 
2.281 
2.374 
2.430 
2.442 
2.444 
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IV 
W 

Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 

CSM Norwood LLC 
Buckingham at Norwood 
Norwood Associates II LLC 
355 Chestnut Street LLC 
355 Chestnut Assoc. c/o Sanzala 
10 Maple Street 
Norwood Project, LLC 
NorwestLLC 
Norwood Self Strge C/O Yelland Prop. 
Levingal Realty 

Total 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor 

$ 

$ 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Principal Property Taxpayers 
Current Vear and Ten Vears Ago 

Unaudited 

2019 
Taxable % 01 Total 

Assessed District Net 
Value Assessed Value 

22,385,100 1.89% 
20,700,000 1.75% 
16,500,000 1.40% 
10,953,000 0.93% 

5,998,600 0.51% 
4,647,000 0.39% 
4,308,900 0.36% 
3,991,200 0.34% 
3,256,900 0.28% 
2,604,600 0.22% 

95,345,300 8.06% ,. 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value 

Exhibit J-B 

2009 
%ofTotal 

District Net 
Assessed Value 

0.00% 



.-
~ 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

December 31, 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Taxes Levied for 
the Fiscal Year 

$ 24,597,704 
25,597,421 
25,178,411 
26,268,723 
26,551,147 
26,612,943 
26,946,358 
28,182,656 
28,810,564 
29,448,612 

Source: Municipal Tax Collector 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the 
Levy Collections in 

Percentage of Subsequent 
Amount Levy Years 

$ 24,141,580 98.14% $ 416,895 
25,022,879 97.75% 454,556 
24,717,721 98.17% 507,856 
25,783,987 98.15% 480,857 
25,942,070 97.70% 590,840 
26,214,789 98.50% 391,888 
26,548,710 98.52% 388,910 
27,660,298 98.14% 438,358 
28,450,523 98.75% 300,971 
29,073,149 98.72% 

Exhibit J-9 

Totai Collections to Date 
Percentage of 

Amount Levy 

$ 24,558,475 
25,477,435 
25,225,577 
26,264,844 
26,532,910 
26,606,677 
26,937,620 
28,098,656 
28,751,494 
29,073,149 

99.84% 
99.53% 

100.18% 
99.98% 
99.93% 
99.97% 
99.96% 
99.70% 
99.79% 
98.72% 



~ 

IV 
U1 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Last Ten Racel Years 

Unaudited 

Business-Type 
Governmental Activities Activfties 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds 
CertiflC8les 0/ 
ParticipatiOn 

$ 5,297,000 $ 
5,017,000 
4,722,000 
4,412,000 
4,087,000 
3,810,000 
3,485,000 
3,150,000 
2,810,000 
2,465,000 

$ 

Capital 
Leases 

Bond 
Anticipation 

Notes (BANs) 

$ 541 

Caeital Leases 

$ 

Exhibit .1-10 

Percentage of 
Personal 

Total District Income Per Caefta 

$ 5,297,541 2.39% 928 
5,017,000 2.06% 815 
4,722,000 2.17% 812 
4,412,000 2.01% 761 
4,087,000 1.58% 702 
3,810,000 1.35% 649 
3,485,000 1.04% 595 
3,150,000 0.82% 534 
2,810,000 0.74% 482 
2,465,000 0.660/0 423 



~ 

N 
en 

Fiscal 
Vear 

Ended 
June 30, 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

General 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Fiscal Vears 

Unaudited 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Percentage of 
Net General Actual Taxable 
Bonded Debt Value of 

Obligation Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property 

$ 5,297,000 $ $ 5,297,000 0.36% 
5,017,000 5,017,000 0.42% 
4,722,000 4,722,000 0.40% 
4,412,000 4,412,000 0.37% 
4,087,000 4,087,000 0.35% 
3,810,000 3,810,000 0.32% 
3,485,000 3,485,000 0.29% 
3,150,000 3,150,000 0.27% 
2,810,000 2,810,000 0.24% 
2,465,000 2,465,000 0.20% 

Exhibit J-11 

Per Capita 

928 
815 
812 
761 
702 
649 
595 
534 
482 
423 



~ 

IV ...., 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 
As of December 31 ,2018 

Net Direct Debt of School District 
as 01 December 31,2018 

Net Overlapping Debt 01 School District: 
Borough 01 Norwood (100%) 
Northern Valley Regional School District 
County 01 Bergen - Borough's share of 

$875,747,791 .01 at December 31, 2018 (.7456%) 
Bergen County Utilities Authority -

Water Pollution Control System -
Borough's share 01 $183,406,807 at 
December 31, 2018 (.8710%) 

Total Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt 
as 01 December 31,2018 

Unaudited 

Source: Borough of Norwood Chief Financial Officer and Bergen County Treasurer's Office. 

$ 9,079,632.05 
2,480,139 

6,529,229 

1,597,473 

$ 

$ 

Exhibit J-12 

2,810,000 

19,686,474 

22,496,474 
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IV 
00 Debllim~ $ 

Total 1181 debt applicable 10 limit 

Logal dobllll8lll"' $ 

T ota! net dabt applicable 10 the limit 
as a percentage 01 debt IImiI 

Debt'mll $ 

T olal nel debt applicable 10 IlmIC 

l.egaJ debt margin $ 

T olal net dabt appUCablti to th" Omit 
as a pereen&age of dabt Um/t 

BOARD OF EDUCA1l0N 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Legal Debt Margin Information 
Last Ten Fiscal Vea .. 

UnllUditad 

Legal Debt Margin CalculaUon for FlSCIII Vur 21118 

gQU 

49,727.111 

3.810;000 

45.917.111 

7._ 

= 
45.912.575 

5.297,541 

_40.615.034 

11.54% 

EquaIIz8d valuallon buIs 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Average equalized valuation 0' taxable propeny 

Debt Umit (4 % of average equalWttlon vafue) 
Total Nel Debl Applicable 10 Umh 

LagaI-IIlBIlI"' 

fiscal Year 

2Q1§ 2lUI 

$ 49.902.891 $ 50,895,959 $ 

3.4851000 31'50.000 

$ .a.4l7.89l $ 47.745,959 $ 

6._ 6.19% 

Ascal Year 

.211!1 iW1 

$ 59.437.974 $ 58.042.484 $ 

5,017,000 4.722.000 

~ 54.42O.9~ ~ 51,320.~ $ 

8.44% 8.43% 

Z!Il.I! 

51.357.625 

2.810,000 

48,547.625 

5.47% 

~ 

52,978.364 

4,412,000 

48.566.364 

6.33% 

Source: Equllized VIII.-tion buos were obUIlned from the Annual Report 0' the Slille of New J ..... y, Dopa_, 01 T ...... ry. Dlvlolon 01 Tau_ 

ExhIbIt .1-13 

1.297.656.158 
1,271.251,127 

$ 1.281.686.458 

51.267,458 
2.465.000 

$ 46.802.458 

Z!Il.I! 

$ 51.267.458 

21465~ 

$ 48.802.458 

4.81% 

iSW. 

$ 50,904.668 

41087.000 

$ 46,817.666 

8.03% 



... 
tv 
ID 

Vear P~lation 

2010 5,711 
2011 6,158 
2012 5,815 
2013 5,797 
2014 5,826 
2015 5,869 
2016 5,858 
2017 5,895 
2018 5,831 
2019 5,831 

Sources: 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Demographic and Economic StaUstlca 
Last Ten Fiscal Vears 

Unaudited 

Personal Income 
Per Capita Personal 

Income 

(Actual) $ 221,329,805 
243,426,356 
217,870,605 
219,584,563 
259,315.260 
283,202,726 
336,471,804 
385,562,475 
379,837,171 

(Esl) 376,038,799 

$ 38,755 (Actual) 
39,530 (Est) 
37,467 (Esl) 
37,879 (Est.) 
44,510 (Est) 
48,254 (Esl) 
57,438 (Esl) 
65,405 (Esl) 
65,141 (~l) 
64,490 (Esl) 

Population InlormaUon provided by the NJ Dept 01 Labor and Workforce Development 

Unemployment 
Rate 

9.0% 
6.2% 
9.0% 
7.2% 
5.2"'-
4.0% 
3.4% 
3.6% 
3.0% 

Peraonallncome haa been estlmatad basad upon the municipal populaUon and par capite paraonallncome presented 

exhibit J-14 

Per capita personallncomB by municipality aatlmatad baaad upon the 2010 Cansus pubillhad by the US Bureau 01 Economic Analysis. 
Unemployment clata provided by the NJ Dept 01 Labor and Workforce Dewlopment 



~ 

w 
o 

Employer Employees 

o 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Principal Employers 
Current Year and Ten Years Ago 

Unaudited 

2019 

Rank 
[Optional] 

Not Available 

Percentage of 
Total Municipal 

Employment 

0.00% 

Source: __________________________________________ __ 

Employees 

o 

2009 

Rank 
[Optional] 

Not Available 

Exhibit J-1S 

Percentage of 
Total Municipal 

Employment 

0 .00% 



FunctJonIProa(!m 

Instruction 
Regular 
Special education 
Other Instruction 

SUpport Sarvlc:es: 
Student and instlUclion related services 
General administrative services 
School administrative S8/V1ces 
Other admlnlstrative services 
Central 5arvices 
AdmlnistraIJv8 infonnalion lachnology 
Plant operations and maintenance 

~ PupIl intnspOflalion .... Other support S8vices 
~ 

Total 

Sou"",: Dlatrtct p""""""" Recorda 

BOARD OF EDUCAllON 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Ful~U .... Equlvaifilt Dlatrlcl Emplopea by FunctIonIProgrom 
UBt Ten Ascal Yura 

Unaudited 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

45.5 45.5 45.5 45.5 46.5 
13 13 13 13 13 
11 11 11 11 11 

5 5 5 5 5 
2 2 3 3 3 
4 3 3 3 3 
3 3 3 3 3 

8 6.5 6.5 7 6.75 

91.5 89 90 91 91.25 

Exhibit J-16 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

46.0 46 46 45 43 
13 13 13 13 13 
11 11 11 9 13 

5 5 5 5 5 
3 3 3 3 3 
3 3 3 3 3 
3 3 3 2 3 

6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 

90.5 90.5 90.5 86.5 89.5 -



F1 .... Opot'l1ting CoItP., ----1!!L. Enrollment I!xpendltu .... P!!l!!' CNI!!fI! 

2010 1125 S 9.631.598 S 15.411 1.53% 
2011 623 9.025.836 15.604 1.25% 
2012 607 9,394,833 15.477 -0,81% 
2013 580 9.501.114 18.381 5.84% 
2014 585 10.254,048 17,528 7.00% 
201S 589 10,077,571 17.110 -2.39% 
2016 614 10,814.14' 17,287 1.04% 
2017 624 10.614.245 17,010 ·1 .60% 
2018 599 11,998,96S 20.032 17.76% 
2019 598 12,287.653 20.548 2.58% 

- _111 __ 

W 
N Nota: EJVQImenI based on 8MuaI October district count 

BOARD OF EOUCAnON 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOO 

0p0t'I111ng -Last Tin FlIcaI V ..... 
Unoudllod 

PupiUTMCMt Ratio 

Teaching SonIo<Hlgh 
Stall 1gem ..... !I School 

54 1:12 
55 1:12 
55 1:11 
55 1:11 
55 2:11 
55 a:l1 
55 3:11 
55 3:11 
58 3:10 
53 3:10 

"-DoIly 
Enroll ...... 

JADEl 

6235 
621 .4 
609.2 
580.0 
583.1 
587.0 
613.0 
623.0 
593.0 
594.9 

A .... c.lly ............. 
!ADAl 

588.2 
597.1 
587.8 
555.0 
583.5 
585.0 
811.7 
621 .1 
571.0 
573.7 

% Change In 
...-ge Danr 

enrollment 

·Uie% 
-0.34"-
·1 .96% 
-4.79% 
0.53% 
0.87% 
4.43% 
1.63% 
-4.82% 
0.32% 

ExhUHt .1-17 

Student ,,­_ .... 
95.94% 
96.09% 
96.45% 
95.B9% 
96.64% 
98.25% 
99.79% 
99.70% 
96.29% 
96.""% 



-w 
w 

Di.trict Building 
Elementary 
Elementary School (K-5) 

Square Feet 
C8paciIy (studenls) 
Enrollment 

Qlt!i! 

Square Feel 

Number of Schools al Jun. 30, 2019 
Elementary K-5 = 1 

Source: Dlstrfcl FocillU .. Office 

2010 2011 

82,891 82,891 

625 623 

4,1711 4,176 

BOARD OF EDUCA1ION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

School Building Inf<>n11llUon 
Lut Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

2012 2013 

82,891 82,891 

623 580 

',176 ',176 

2014 2015 

82,891 82,891 

585 589 

4,176 4,176 

Note: Year of original construction is shown in parentheses, Increases in square fOOlage and capacity are the result of allerations 
and addillons. Enrolmenlis based on Ihe annual October district count. 

Exhibit J-18 

2016 2017 201. 20111 

82,891 82,691 82,891 82,891 

614 624 599 598 

4,176 ',1711 4,176 4.176 



~ 

w 

""" 

I.JnI:istribuiad ExperOIUl"BS-ReqWad 
Maintenance lor School Facilitias 

11~281·JOO( 

"School Fpcitity 

El __ SchooI 

Administrative Blilding 

DiatrictTotlil 

Pending Projects 

fwrpoE Protpd " 

"School facilities as defined anSar EFCFA. 
(N.JAC.6A:26-1..2 aro N.JAC.6A:26A· t .3) 

Gross 
BUlding 
~ 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Gentrlll Fund 
Schedule 01 Required Malnlonanc:elo, School Fa.llities 

I.ut Ton F ..... Yoano 
Unaudited 

gQJi i!UA 221I ~ i2!li 2!!!! 

&hINt .... ,. 

2Q!.;! ~ 2211 2SI!2 

82,891 $ 282,271 S 251,222 $ 235,984 S 251.735 S 211,127 S 219,571 S 213,377 S 248,973 $ 188,639 $ 174,372 

~ $ 282,211 S 251.222 S 235.964 S 251.735 S 211 ,127 S 219,571 $ 213,377 S 248.973 S 188,639 S 174,372 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

Insurance Schedule 
As of June 30, 2019 

Unaudited 

Northesl Bergen County School Board Insurance Group: 

Selecllve Way Insurance Company: 
Property - Blanket Building & Conlents $ 

Boller and Machinery 

Comprehensive General Liability 

Coverage 

18,441,639 

250,000 

2,000,000 

Employee Benefils Liability 1,000,000/2,000,000 

Environmental Legal Liability 4,000,000 

Commercial Aulornoblle liability 1,000,000 

Safety National Casualty Company 
Workers' Compensation (Employe(s Uability) 1,000,000 

Darwin National Assu. 
School Board Legal Liability 1,000,000 

American Allemat/ves Insurance Company: 
Commercial Umbrella liability 15,000,000 

Selective Insurance Company of America: 
Employee Dishonesty 100,000 

Areman's Fund Insurance Company 
Excess Liability Coverages 50,000,000 

Surety Bonds: 

School Business AdminlstralorlBoard Secrelary 50,000 

Source: District records. 
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Deductible 

$ 5,000 

1,000 

15,000 

5,000 
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Cliris C. !J{WfJ"o, ~ 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF fiNANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Borough of Norwood School District 
County of Bergen, New Jersey 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Borough of Norwood School 
District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise Borough of Norwood School District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated September 25, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of the Borough of Norwood School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Borough of 
Norwood School District's internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstance for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Norwood School District's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of 
Norwood School District's intemal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of. control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity'S financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identity all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Mntters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assumnce about whether the Borough of Norwood School District'S financial 
statements are free of material misslatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Siandards. 

Purpose of This Report 

TIle purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, nnd not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Norwood School 
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Borough of Norwood School District's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Montville, New Jersey 
September 25, 2019 
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Timothy M. Vrabel 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM: REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE: REPORT ON SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS AND STATE 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REOUIRED BY TITLE 2 U.S. CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS (CFR) PART 200, 
UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REOUIREMENTS, COST PRINCIPLES AND AUDIT REOUIREMENTS FOR 

FEDERAL A WARDS AND 
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR LETTER 15-08 

The Honorable President nnd 
Members of the Board of Education 
Borough of Norwood School District 
County of Bergen, New Jersey 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on Compliance for Each Mnjor Stnte Program 

We have audited the Borough of Norwood School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U.S Office of Manngement nnd Budget (OM B) Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey 
Compliance Manual State Grants Compliance Supplement that could hnve a direct and mnterial effect on each of its 
major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. Borough of Norwood School District's major state programs are 
identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results Section of the accompnnying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

AtJlllwgemeJlI's RespOIIJibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grnnts npplicnble to 
its state programs. 

AI/(/iwr's Respollsibilily 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for ench of Borough of Norwood School District's major state 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
npplicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; in complinnce with the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of 
Education, State of New Jersey; Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Pat1 200, Unirorm Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awnrds, and New Jersey Office or Management and 
Budget Circular Letter 15-08 Single Audit Policy ror Recipients of Grnnts, State Grnnts nnd State Aid. Those 
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standards, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's Circular Letter 15-08 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Borough of Norwood School District's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination 
of Borough of Norwood School District's compliance with those requirements. 

OflillilJIIIJII Ellc" Mlljur SlllIe flrogflllll 

In our opinion, the Borough of Norwood School District, in the County of Bergen, State of New Jersey, complied, in all 
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements refened to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on each ofits major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliun •• 

The management of Borough of Norwood School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Borough of Norwood School District's internul control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Borough of Norwood School District'S internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Norwood School District's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in illlemal canlrol over cOlllflliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perform ing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A lIIalerial 
weakness in internal cOIl/rol over compliance is a deficienc),. or combination of deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a state will not be prevented or detected and corrected. on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internul comrol over compliance is n deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses mny exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
federal Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrntive Requirements. Cost Principles. nnd Audit 
Requirements for Federnl Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 

We have audited the financial statements of the Borough of Norwood School District as of and for the year ended June 
30,2019, and have issued our report thereon dated September 25, 2019, which contained an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis as required by Titie 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB 
Circular 15-08 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the Schedules of Expenditure of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are 
fairly stated in ali material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Montville, New Jersey 
September 25, 2019 

~I'JUJ-
Public School Accountant 
License No. CSOO0698 

Chris C. W. Hwang ~7 
Certified Public Accountant 
License No. CC033704 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Note I: General 

K-5 
Sheet I 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance present the activity of all 
federal and state programs of the Borough of Norwood School District Board of Education. The Board of 
Education is defined in Notel:B. to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal awards and state 
financial assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state 
financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards and state financial assistance. 

Note 2: Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented using the 
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are 
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Notes I:E and 
Notel:F. to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in the schedules is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Unifonn 
Administratjve Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore, 
some amounts presented in the schedules may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation 
of, the basic financial stalements. Board has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Note 3: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. 
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund 
to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permiued by law or grant 
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until 
the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. 

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis wilh the 
exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current 
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.l.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, payments are not 
recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and recording of the state aid payments in the 
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant 
accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the 
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the one or 
more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.l.S.A. I SA:22-44.2. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NOR WOOD 

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20 I 9 

(CONCLUDED) 
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Note 3: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 4: 

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $(4,608,00) for the general 
fund and $(3,343,69) for the special revenue fund , See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of accounting for the general and special 
revenue funds, Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial 
statements on a GAAP basis as follows: 

Federal State Total 
General Fund $ S 2,155,944,10 $ 2, I 55,944, 10 
Special Revenue Fund 198,717.41 -0- 198,717.41 

Total Awards and 
Financial Assistance S 198.71741 $ 2.155.,944,10 $ 2.lS4,Q.G.L5J 

Relationjhip to [ede[al and Sta!e Finpncial Reports 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federa! 
and state financial reports, 

Note 5: Other 

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value 
received and current year distributions respectively, The amounts reported lIS On-Behalf TPAF 
Contributions represents the amount paid by the stale on behalf of the district for post-retirement medical 
benefits and the normal and accrued liability pension costs for the year ended June 30, 2019, TPAF Social 
Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of social 
security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2019, 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

SCHEPULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3~. 2019 

Part I - Summary or Auditor's Results 
Finnncial Stutement Section 

A) Type or auditor's report issued: Unmodified 

B) Internal Control over financial reporting: 

I) Material wenkness(es) identified? __ -Jyes 

K-6 
Sheet I 

X no 
2) Were significant deficiencies identified 

that were not considered to be material 
weaknesses? -yes_X<>-_none reported 

C) Noncompliance material to basic 
financial statements noted? 

Federnl Awnrds Section - Not Applicable 
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BOARD Of EDUCATION 
BOROUGH Of NOR WOOD 

SCHEDULE Of fiNDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued) 

Stole Finnncini Assistnncc Section 

F) Dollar threshold used to determine Type A 
Programs 

K) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

L) Type of auditor's report on compliance for 
major programs. 

M) Internal Control over compliance: 

I) Material weakness(es) identified? 

$ 750.000.00 

_.....!.XLJyes ___ no 

Unmodified 

--yes -Lno 

K-6 
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2) Were significant deficiencies identified 
that were not considered to be 
material weaknesses? --yes -Xnone reported 

N) Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with N.J. OMB 
Circular 15-08? 

0) Identification of major programs: 

GMIS Numberls) 

19-495-034-5120-089 

19-495-034-5120-084 

--yes _X_no 

Name of State Program 

Specinl Education Aid 

Security Aid 
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BOARD OF EDUCATtON 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

(CONTINUEDl 

Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings 

K·G 
Sheet 3 

This section identities tile significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related 10 

the basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Not Applicable 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF NORWOOD 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

(CONTINUED) 

rart 3 - Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 

K-6 
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This section identilies the signilicant deliciencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including 
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by Title 2 U,S, Code or 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMS's Circular 15-08, 

FEDERAL A WARDS 
Not Applicable 

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

Not Applicable 
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BOARD Of EDUCATION 
BOROUGH Of NOR WOOD 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR·YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 
AND OUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 

K·7 

This section identifies the status of prior·year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state 
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, Title 2 
U.S. Code of federal Regulations (CfR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's Circlilar 15·08. 

Not Applicable 
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